Price Waterhouse

Chartered Accountants
Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Volkswagen Finance Private Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2019, the statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for
the year then ended and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act") in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2019, and total
comprehensive income (comprising of loss and other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its
cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for opinion

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,

Key audit matters

4. Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Key audit matter

Expected Credit Loss (ECL) provision in
respect of loans carried at amortised cost

(refer Note 1.5C for accounting policy and Note 5
for ECL provision)

As detailed in Note 5, the Company has financial
assets carried at amortized cost amounting to Rs,
5,29,807.42 Lakhs (gross) as at March 31, 2019.
The Company holds ECL provision of Rs.
38,495.54 Lakhs against such assets. As discussed
in note 1.5C, ECL provision has been determined
in accordance with Ind AS 109 - Financial
Instruments and is significant to the financial
statements.

We focused on this area as determining ECL

provision requires significant judgements by the
management. Key areas of judgement included:

- Assumptions used in the expected credit loss
model such as the financial condition of the
counterparty, probability of default and loss
given default.

- The identification of exposures with a significant
deterioration in credit quality.

Other Information

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

We carried out following procedures in respect to ECL
provision:

held discussions with management and obtained
understanding of significant assumptions like
probability of default and loss given default used
for making impairment assessment in ECL model.
Also obtained the understanding of the process and
relevant controls to determine these significant
assumptions.

evaluated the design and tested operating
effectiveness of controls in respect of significant
assumptions like probability of default and loss
given default including appropriate approvals and
mathematical accuracy, which are used in ECL
Model to determine the level of provisions.

with the involvement of our experts, we assessed
the assumptions and judgement made by
management used to calculate provision using ECL
Model.

Traced key data inputs used to compute the ECL
provision in the ECL model on a sample basis to
assess their accuracy and completeness.

Ensured mathematical accuracy of the ECL
provision by performing recalculations on sample
basis.

Based on available evidence, we did not identify any
significant exception to the ECL provision in respect of
loans.

5. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Director’s report, but does not include the financial

statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express

any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

,7\ Waterh(jfk;- &
¥

y Sa
/ \//'" .y\ \

.‘ \rtered Ackountants
NN Ry 3011128 * )

.\

\\ Mumba\ '__,_/.f}//



Price Waterhouse

Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Volkswagen Finance Private Limited
Report on audit of the Financial Statements
Page 3 of 5

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial
statements

6. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified
under section 133 of the Act This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

7. In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Those Board of Directors are also
responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

8. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.

9. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness
of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
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or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

10. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned

11.

12,

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

Other matter

13.

The financial information of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2018 and the transition date
opening balance sheet as at April 1, 2017 included in these Ind AS financial statements, are based on
the previously issued statutory financial statements for the years ended March 31, 2018 and March 31,
2017 prepared in accordance with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended)
which were audited by us, on which we expressed an unmodified opinion dated May 29, 2018 and
May 29, 2017 respectively. The adjustments to those financial statements for the differences in
accounting principles adopted by the Company on transition to the Ind AS have been audited by us.
Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

14.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure B
a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

15. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books;
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(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the
Statement of Changes in Equity and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2019 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2019 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements

of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure A”;

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
financial statements —~ Refer Note 36 to the financial statements;

ii. The Company has made provision as at March 31, 2019, as required under the applicable law
or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, on long-term contracts - Refer Note
5. The Company did not have any derivative contracts as at March 31, 2019;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2019; and

iv.  The reporting on disclosures relating to Specified Bank Notes is not applicable to the
Company for the year ended March 31, 2019

For Price Waterhouse
Firm Registration Number: 301112E
Chartered Accountants

Sharad Agwaral
Place: Mumbai Partner

Date: May 30, 2019 Membership Number: 118522
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Referred to in paragraph 15 (f) of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Volkswagen
Finance Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements under Clause
(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

1. We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Volkswagen Finance
Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and both issued by the
ICAI Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

6. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2019, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Price Waterhouse
Firm Registration Number: 301112E
Chartered Accountants

i
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Sharad Agarwal
Place: Mumbai Partner
Date: May 30, 2019 Membership Number 118522
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(b)
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The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation, of fixed assets.

The fixed assets of the Company have been physically verified by the Management during the year. The
discrepancies noticed on such verification were not material and have been properly dealt with in the
books of account. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable.

The title deeds of immovable properties, as disclosed in Note 7(a) on fixed assets to the financial
statements, are held in the name of the Company.

The Company is in the business of rendering services, and consequently, does not hold any inventory.
Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(ii) of the said Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act.
Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(iii), (iii)(a), (iii)(b) and (iii)(c) of the said Order are not applicable
to the Company.

The Company has not granted any loans or provided any guarantees or security in connection with any
loan taken by parties covered under Section 185. Therefore, the provisions of section 185 are not
applicable to the Company. The Company is registered as a Non- Banking Financial Company with
Reserve Bank of India. Therefore, the provision of section 186, except sub-section (1) of section 186, of
the Act are not applicable to the Company. Further, the Company has not made any investment to the
parties covered under section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 and accordingly the provision of Clause
3(iv) of the said Order in respect of Section 186 (1) is not applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 73, 74, 75
and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under to the extent notified.

The Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records under sub-section
(1) of Section 148 of the Act for any of the products of the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined
by us, in our opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues in
respect of income tax, though there has been a slight delay in a few cases, and is regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues, including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, sales tax, service tax,
duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess, goods and service tax and other material statutory
dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities. Also, refer note 36(a)(iv) to the financial
statements regarding management's assessment on certain matters relating to provident fund.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined
by us, the particulars of dues of income tax, sales tax, service tax or goods and service tax as at March
31, 2019 which have not been deposited on account of a dispute, are as follows:

Nature of Amount Period to which | Forum where the
dues (Rs.) the amount dispute is pending
relates
The Central | Service Tax Rs. 5,071.85 Lakhs Financial Years | The Customs,
Excise Act, | (Rs. 2,534.08 Lakhs 2012 -18 Excise and Service
1944 ‘ paid under protest. Tax Appellate
|

Name of the
statute

Also, refer Note 36 Tribunal
(CESTAT)

Income Tax Rs. 89.20 Lakhs Financial year Income Tax
(Rs. 44.60 Lakhs 2014-15 Appellate Tribunal
paid under protest) | (ITAT).

The Income
Tax Act, 1961

£
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Vviii.

xi.

xii.

xiii.

Xiv.

According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanation given
to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to any financial institution
or bank or Government or dues to debenture holders as at the balance sheet date.

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer and further public offer
(including debt instruments). The moneys raised by way of term loans have been applied for the
purpose for which they were obtained.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information
and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material fraud by the
Company or on the Company by its officers or employees, noticed or reported during the year, nor
have we been informed of any such case by the Management.

The provisions of Section 1977 read with Schedule V to the Act are applicable only to public companies.
Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to {t, the
provisions of Clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the provisions of
Sections 177 and 188 of the Act. The details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party
Disclosures specified under Section 133 of the Act.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debentures during the year under review. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xiv) of
the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not entered into any non cash transactions with its directors or persons connected
with him. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is required to, and has been registered under Section 45-I1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934 as a Non-Banking Financial Institution.

For Price Waterhouse
Firm Registration Number: 301112E
Chartered Accountants

o=

Sharad Agwaral

Place: Mumbai Partner
Date: May 30, 2019 Membership Number: 118522



Volkswagen Finance Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019

Particulars Note March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 Aprll 01, 2017
{Rupees in Lakhs) (Rupees In Lakhs) {Rupees in Lakhs)
ASSETS
Financial assets
(a) Cash and cash equivalents 2 670.08 313.89 273.95
(b) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 3 1.00 1.00 60.83
(c) Receivables 4
(1) Trade receivables 2,586.45 2,220.42 908.71
(1) Other receivables . - -
(d) Loans 5 491,311.88 557,873.94 590,136.44
{e) Other Financial assets 6 617.02 580.65 478.73
Total financlal assets 495,186.43 560,989.90 591,858.66
Non-flnanclal assets
(a) Deferred Tax Asset {net) 37 13,017.87 6,848.91 6,511.18
(b} Property, Plant and Equipments 7(a) 706.18 923.16 863.84
(c) Intangible Assets 7(a) 300,06 317.79 318.09
(d) Capital work-in-progress 7 (b) 28.46 6.52 84.46
{e) Intangible Assets under Development 7(b) 1,921.96 1,070.25 78.11
(f) Other non financial assets 8 (a) 3,361.45 3,891.87 3,280.54
(g) Assets held for sale 8(b) 493.23 586.76 624.51
Total non financlal assets 19,829.21 13,645.26 11,760.73
TOTAL ASSETS 515,015.64 574,635.16 603,619.39
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilitles
Financial llabilitles
(a) Payables
(i) Trade payables
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 5
enterprises 2.19
(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 5
enterprises and small enterprises 16,647.85 22,057.95 27,227.17
{Il) Other payables
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 9
enterprises -
(i) total outstanding dues of creditars other than micro 9
enterprises and small enterprises - =
(b) Debt securities 10 146,730.78 230,133.63 166,844.41
(¢) Borrowings (Other than debt securities) 11 207,319.94 178,388.90 273,425.02
{d) Other financial fiahilities 12 3,365.98 2,760.70 1,174.98
Total financial liabilitles 374,064.55 433,341.18 468,673.77
Non-flnancial liabilltles
(a) Other non financial liabilities 13 6,827.07 3,376.44 2,692.30
Total non financlal liabllitles 6,827.07 3,376.44 2,692.30
Equlity
(a) Eguity Share Capital 14 116,880.21 116,880.21 116,880.21
(b) Other Equity 15 17,243.81 21,037.33 15,373.11
Total equity 134,124.02 137,917.54 132,253.32
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 515,015.64 574,635.16 603,619.39
Background and Significant Accounting Policies 1

The Notes to the Financial Statements form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.

For Price Waterhouse
Firm Registration No. 301112E
Chartered Accountants

Sharad Agarwal

Partner
Membership No. 118522

Mumbeai
May 30, 2019

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

e

AShish Dgshpande
Chief Executive Officer &
Managing Director

DIN ()8314277

\

T
tarshada Pathak
Company Secretary

Mumbai
May 29, 2019

an Cinar
Financial Officer &




Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2019

Year Ended March | Year Ended March
Partlculars Note 31,2019 31,2018
{Rupees in Lakhs) | {Rupees In Lakhs)
Revenue From Operations
(i) Interest income using effective interest rate 16 53,112.28 57,161.10
(i) Fees and commission income 17 5,501.66 3,627.97
(iii} Other operating income 18 393.76 409.73
| Total Revenue from operations 59,007.70 61,198.80
Il Other Income 19 256.24 260.77
1l Total Income {1 + 1) 59,263.94 ~ 61,459.57
IV Expenses
(i) Finance Costs 20 29,346.67 32,322.08
(i) Impairment of financial instruments 23 16,454.36 2,799.97
(iii} Employee Benefits Expenses 21 5,184.48 5,392.40
{iv) Depreciation and amortization expenses 7 364.36 471.91
{v) Other Expenses 22 13,758.51 11,244.82
Total Expenses ~ 65,108.38 52,231.18
V  (Loss) / Profit before Tax (5,844.44) 9,228.39
VI Tax (Expense)/Income (2,030.55) 3,566.10
(1) Current Tax 4,138.41 3,903.83
(2) Deferred Tax (6,168.96) (337.73)
VIl (Loss) / Profit for the year (V-Vi) {3,813.89) 5.662.29
VIl Other Comprehenslve Income
A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss
(a) Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans 31.16 2.95
{il} Income tax relating to Items that will
not be reclassified to profit or loss (10.78} (1.02)
Subtotal (A) 20.38 1.93
B (1) ltems that will be raclassified to
profit or {loss}
Total remeasurements for gratulty included In OCI -
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will
be reclassified to profit or loss -
Income tax on total remeasurements for gratuity
included in OCI
Subtotal (B) . -
Other Camprehensive Income (A + B} 20.38 1.93
Total Comprehensive Income for the perlad (VI1l+1X)
IX  (Comprising {Loss) / Profit and other Comprehensive
Income for the year) (3,793.51) 5,664.22
X Earnings / (loss) per Equity Share of Rs.10 each 25
Basic and Dlluted
Category 'A' Equity Shares of Rs.10 each {0.32) 0.48
Category 'B' Equity Shares of Rs.10 each {0.32) 0.48
Background and Significant Accounting Policies 1

The Notes to the Financial Statements form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date.

For Price Waterhouse
Firm Registration No. 301112E
Chartered Accountants

Sharad Agarwal
Partner
Membership No. 118522

Mumbai
May 30, 2019

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chief Executive Officer &
Managing Director

DIN 08314277
16 A |k
Harshada Pathak
Company Secretary

Mumbai
May 29, 2019

Managing|lirector
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Volkswagen Finance Prlvate Limlted
Statement of cash flow for the year ended March 31, 2019

Particulars Year Ended March 31, 2019 Year Ended March 31, 2018
(Rupees In Lakhs) {Rupees In Lakhs)
A.Cash flow from operating actlvitles
Net {Loss} / Profit betore taxation {5,844.44) 9,228.39
Adjustments for :
Depreciation / amortisation 364.36 471,91
Interest on Fixed Deposit (13.47) {72.25)
Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets (net) 31.81 2057
Expected credit loss on financial assets 16,454.36 2,799.97
Bad Debts Written Off 354143 3,19198
Provislon for Gratuity 4438 53.04
Provision for Leave Encashment 83.09 3455
Interest on Debt Securities and Borrowings other than debt securities 28,980.86 31,997.93
Interest paid on Debt Securities and Borrowings other than debt securities (31,873.05) {31,970 62)
Operating Proflt before working capltal changes 11,769.33 15,755.47
Changes In working capital :
(Decrease) in Payables {5,410.10) (5,171.41)
Increase in Other financial liabllitles 605.28 1,585.72
Increase in Qther non financial liabilities 1,229.01 462 35
{ncrease) in Recehahle {366.02) {1,311.71)
{Increase) / decrease In Other non financial assets 380.57 (51.07)
{Increase) in Other Financlal assets (36.37) {101.92)
Decrease in Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 5983
Other Adjustment:
Decrease in Loans 46,566 28 26,270.55
Cash used in Operations 54,737.98 37,497.81
Taxes paid (1,780.49) {4,290 02)
Net cash Inflow from operating actlvities 52,957.49 33,207.79
B.Cash flow from Investing Activities
Purchase of tangible/i ible assets excluding Capltal work-In-
progress (230.92) {595.65)
Purchase of tangible/intangible assets under Capital work-In-
progress {873.66) {914.19)
Sale of tangible/intangible assets 69.45 43,94
Investment In Fixed Deposits {12,500.00) {58,500.00)
Proceeds fram maturity of Fixed Deposits 12,500.00 58,50000
Interest recelved on fixed deposit 13.47 72.25
Mot cash outflaw from investing activities {1,021.66) {1,393.85)
C.Cash flow from Flnancing Actlvities
Proceeds from Non Convertible Debentures 100,000 00
Repayment / Redemption of Non convertible debentures (80,000.00} (40,000.00)
Repayment of Term loans (12,500.00)
Net proceeds / (repayment ) from / of Bank Overdraft (65,088.91) 23,561.48
Praceeds from issue of Commercial Papers 359,446.21 220,809.41
Repayment of Commercial Papers (292,436.94) {371,045.09)
Proceeds from Working Capital Demand Loan 502,400.00 455,300.00
Repayment of Working Capital Demand Loan {475,900.00) {407,900.00]
Net cash outflow from financlng activities 61.579.64} (31.774.20)
Net Increase in Cash and cash equlvalents (A)+{B}+{C) 356.19 39,94
Cash and cash equlvalents, beglnning of the year 313.89 273,95
Cash and cash equivalents, end of the year 670.08 313.89
MNotes (o the stitemaent of cash Mow :
1) Cash and cash equivalents comprise of:
Cash on hand 0.06 0.08
Bulances with schodulod banks 670.02 31381
TOTAL 670.08 313.89

The above statement of cash flow has been prepared under the 'indirect method' as set out in IndAs 7 - ‘Statement of Cash Flow'

This is the statement of cash flow referred to in our report of even date

For Price Waterhouse
Firm Registration No. 301112E
Chartered Accountants

Sharsd Aganal

Partner
Membership No. 118522

Mumbai
May 30, 2019

For mwd on

Ashigh Desypands
Ehlef Evalutiive Officer &

Managing {Siructor

.llusmaﬂ[ﬂ: L

v ‘\L,Lk, !l\m/:'-//
Harshas Pathak
Company Secretary

Mumbai
May 29, 2019

whall of the Board of [Hegtars
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Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2019

(Rupees in Lakhs)

Reserves and Surplus
I Special Reserves -
R under section 45-IC |  Retained earnings .
of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934.

Opening balance as on April 1, 2017 4,750.34 10,622.77 15,373.11
Profit / (loss) for the year 5,662.29 5,662.29
Other Comprehensive Income for the year 1.93 1.93
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - 5,664.22 5,664.22
Transfer from Statement of Profit and Loss to Special Reserve 1,046.50 (1,046.50) -
Changes during the year 1,046.50 4,617.72 5,664.22
Closing balance as on March 31, 2018 5,796.84 15,240.49 21,037.33
Opening balance as on March 31, 2018 5,796.84 15,240.49 21,037.33
Profit / (loss) for the year (3,813.89) (3,813.89)
Other Comprehensive Income for the year 20.38 20.38
Total Comprehensive Income for the year (3,793.51) (3,793.51)
Transfer from Statement of Profit and Loss to Special Reserve -
Changes during the year (3,793.51) (3,793.51)
Closing balance as on March 31, 2019 5,796.84 11,446.98 17,243.81

This is the Statement of changes in equity referred to in our report of even date.

For Price Waterhouse
Firm Registration No. 301112E
Chartered Accountants

=

-

Sharad Agarwal
Partner

Membership No. 118522

Mumbai
May 30, 2019

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

e
Ashish.Deshpande
Chief Executive Officer &

Managing Director

Harshada Pathak
Company Secretary

Mumbai
May 29, 2019

Golkhan Cinar
Chief Financial Officer &

Managing Director
DIN 07649354




Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 (Continued)

1.1.CORPORATE INFORMATION

Volkswagen Finance Private Limited (VWFPL) has been incorporated on January 16, 2009. The
Company received NBFC license from the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) on March 17, 2011 and
commenced NBFC business from March 24, 2011. VWFPL is providing retail loan financing,
dealer financing, term loans, used cars financing, operating lease and insurance solutions to the
customers for purchase of VW Group brand vehicles i.e. Volkswagen, Skoda, Audi, Porsche,
Lamborghini, MAN and Scania.

1.2.BASIS OF PREPARATION

A. Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 as amended by the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2016. The
Company has adopted Ind AS from April 01, 2018 with effective transition date of April 01,2017
and accordingly, these financial statements together with the comparative reporting period have
been prepared in accordance with the recognition and measurement principles as laid down in
Ind AS, prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act') read with relevant
rules issued there under and other relevant provision of the act. The transition to Ind AS has
been carried out from the erstwhile Accounting Standards notified under the Act read with Rule
7 of Companies {Accounts) Rules 2014 (as amended), guidelines issued by the RBI and other
generally accepted accounting principles in India (collectively referred to as 'the Previous GAAP').
Accordingly, the impact of transition has been recorded in the opening reserves as at April 01
,2017 and the comparative previous year has been restated / reclassified.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for:
e Certain financial assets and liabilities - measured at fair value

o Assets held for sale- Measured at fair value less cost to sell.

¢ Defined benefit plans (Employee benefit provisions) — measured at fair value.

The financial statements have been prepared on accrual and going concern basis. The
accounting policies are applied consistently to all the financial years presented in the financial
statements, including the preparation of the opening Ind AS Balance Sheet as at April 01, 2017
being the ‘date of transition to Ind AS’. These financial statements were authorized for issue by
the Company’s Board of Directors on 29" May 2019.

B. Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Ind AS requires use of estimates and
assumptions for some items, which might have an effect on their recognition and measurement
in the Balance sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss. The actual amounts realized may differ
from these estimates. The estimates and the underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis.

FRN 3011128
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Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 (Continued)

Judgement, estimates and assumptions are required in particular for:

VI.

Determination of estimated useful lives of property, plant, equipment

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment are based on the nature of the asset, the
estimated usage of the asset, the operating conditions of the asset, past history of
replacement, anticipated technological changes, manufacturers’ warranties and
maintenance support.

. Recognition and Measurement of defined benefit obligations

The obligation arising from defined benefit plan is determined on the basis of actuarial
valuation. Key actuarial assumptions which form the basis of above valuation includes
discount rate, trends in salary escalation, demographics and life expectancy. The discount
rate is determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on
government bonds. The period to maturity of the underlying bonds correspond to the
probable maturity of the post-employment benefit obligations. Further details are disclosed
in note 26.

Recognition of deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences of
temporary differences between the carrying values of assets and liabilities and their
respective tax bases, depreciation carry-forwards and tax credits. Deferred tax assets are
recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable income will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, depreciation carry-forwards and
unused tax credits could be utilized.

. Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies

The recognition and measurement of other provisions are based on the assessment of the
probability of an outflow of resources, and on past experience and circumstances known at
the reporting date. The actual outflow of resources at a future date may therefore, vary
from the amount included in other provisions.

. Discounting of long-term financial assets/liabilities

All financial assets/liabilities are required to be measured at fair value on initial recognition.
In case of financial assets/liabilities which are required to be subsequently measured at
amortised cost, interest is accrued using the effective interest method.

Fair value of financial instruments
The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous)
market at the measurement date under current market conditions (i.e., an exit price)
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the
balance sheet cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined using a variety
of valuation techniques that include the use of valuation models. The inputs to these
models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible,
estimation is required in establishing fair values. Judgements and estimates include
considerations of liquidity and model inputs related to items such as credit risk {(both own
and counterparty), funding value adjustments, correlation and volatility. For further details
about determination of fairvalue please see Note 28.
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Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 (Continued)

VH.

Viil.

Business model assessment

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the solely
payment of principal and interest (SPPI) and the business model test. The Company
determines the business model at a level that reflects how groups of financial assets are
managed together to achieve a particular business objective. This assessment includes
judgement reflecting all relevant evidence including how the performance of the assets is
evaluated and their performance measured, the risks that affect the performance of the
assets and how these are managed and how the managers of the assets are compensated.
The Company monitors financial assets measured at amortised cost or fair value through
other comprehensive income that are derecognised prior to their maturity to understand
the reason for their disposal and whether the reasons are consistent with the objective of
the business for which the asset was held.

Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method

The Company’s EIR methodology, recognises interest income / expense using a rate of
return that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the contractual
life of loans given/ taken and recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates at
various stages and other characteristics of the product life cycle.

. Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognizes loss allowances for expected credit losses on its financial assets
measured at amortized cost. At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether the
above financial assets are credit- impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit- impaired’ when one
or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset have occurred. The Company’s ECL calculations are outputs of statistical
models with a number of underlying assumptions regarding the choice of variable inputs
and their interdependencies such as macroeconomic scenarios and collateral values.

C. Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) and all values are rounded to
the nearest lakhs with two decimals, except when otherwise indicated.

1.3.STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

Following are the new standards and amendments to existing standards (as notified by
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA’) on 30th March, 2019) which are effective for annual
period beginning after April 1 st 2019. The Company intends to adopt these standards or
amendments from the effective date.
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Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 (Continued)

Ind AS 116 — Leases

Ind AS 116 is applicable for financial reporting periods beginning on or after April 01, 2019 and
replaces existing lease accounting guidance, namely Ind AS 17 Leases. Ind AS 116 introduces a
single, on-balance sheet lease accounting model for lessees. A lessee recognises a right-of-use
(“ROU") asset representing its right to use the underlying asset and a lease liability
representing its obligation to make lease payments. The nature of expenses related to those
leases will change as Ind AS 116 replaces the operating lease expense (i.e. rent) with
depreciation charge for ROU assets and interest expense on lease liabilities. There are
recognition exemptions for short-term leases and leases of low-value items. Lessor accounting
remains similar to the current standard — i.e. lessors continue to classify leases as finance or
operating leases.

The Company is in the process of analysing the impact of new lease standard on its financial
statements.

1.4. AMENDMENTS TO EXISTING IND AS:

The following amended standards are not expected to have a significant impact on the
Company’s financial statements. This assessment is based on currently available information
and may be subject to changes arising from further reasonable and supportable information
being made available to the Company when it will adopt the respective amended standards.

.  Amendment to Ind AS 12 Income Taxes: Appendix C ~ Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments
The Appendix addresses how to recognise and measure deferred and current income tax
assets and liabilities where there is uncertainty over a tax treatment.

II.  Amendments to Ind AS 12 Income Taxes
The amendments clarify that the income tax consequences of dividends on financial
instruments classified as equity should be recognised according to where the past
transactions or events that generated distributable profits were recognised.

. Amendments to Ind AS 19 Employee Benefits
This amendment requires:
s To use updated assumptions to determine current service cost and net interest for
the remainder of the period after a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement; and
¥ To recognise in statement of profit or loss as part of past service cost, or gain or loss
on settlement, any reduction in surplus, even if that surplus was not previously
recognised because of the impact of the asset ceiling.
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Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 (Continued)

1.5.SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
A. REVENUE RECOGNITION

l. Interest income on financial assets is recognized on an accrual basis using effective
interest method. Interest revenue is continued to be recognized at the original effective
interest rate applied on the gross carrying amount of assets falling under stages 1 and 2
as against on amortised cost net of impairment allowance for the assets falling under
impairment stage 3.

ll. Fees and commission income and expense that are integral to the effective interest rate
on a financial asset or financial liability are included in the effective interest rate. Fees
and commission that are not integral to effective interest rate are recognised on accrual

basis over the life of instrument.

1. All other fees, commissions and other income and expense are generally recognised on
an accrual basis by reference to completion of the specific transaction assessed based on
the actual service provided as a proportion of the total services to be provided

V. The Company recognises revenue from contracts with customers based on a five step
model as set out in Ind 115:

Step 1: Identify contract(s) with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement between
two or more parties that creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets out the criteria
for every contract that must be met.

Step 2: Identify performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a
promise in a contract with a customer to transfer a good or service to the customer.

Step 3: Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of
consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring
promised goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third
parties.

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a
contract that has more than one performance obligation, the Company allocates the
transaction price to each performance obligation in an amount that depicts the amount of
consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for satisfying each
performance obligation.

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the Company satisfies a performance obligation.

The Company recognises revenue from contracts with customers based on a five step model
as set out below.
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Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 (Continued)

B. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Classification

The company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories;

e those to be subsequently measured at (either through other comprehensive income, or
through profit or loss), and

e those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or
other comprehensive income.

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction fees or costs that are directly
attributable and incremental to the origination/acquisition of the financial asset unless
otherwise specifically mentioned in the accounting policies.

The Company recognises the financial assets at trade date on initial recognition,

Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of a business model in which an asset is
held such that it best reflects the way the business is managed and is consistent with
information provided to management. The information considered includes:

— the objectives for the portfolio, in particular, management’s strategy of focusing on
earning contractual interest revenue, maintaining a particular interest rate profile,
matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of the liabilities that are
funding those assets or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets;

— the frequency, volume and timing of sales in prior periods, the reasons for such sales
and its expectations about future sales activity. However, information about sales
activity is not considered in isolation, but as part of an overall assessment of how the
Company’s stated objective for managing the financial assets is achieved and how cash
flows are realised.

— the risks that affect the performance of the business model, the financial assets held
within that business model and how those risks are managed.
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Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 (Continued)

Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest
For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial
asset on initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money
and for the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular
period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs, as well as profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and

interest, the Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes

assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the

timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In

making the assessment, the Company considers:

— reset terms

— contingent events that would change the amount and timing of cash flows;

— prepayment and extension terms; and

— features that modify consideration of the time value of money — e.g. periodical reset of
interest rates.

Financial assets at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost only if both of the following conditions are

met:

— it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows.

— the contractual terms of the financial asset represent contractual cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by considering
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR
and reported as part of interest income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The losses if any,
arising from impairment are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial asset at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI)

Financial asset with contractual cash flow characteristics that are solely payments of
principal and interest and held in a business model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets are classified to be measured at
FVOCI. The impairment losses, if any, on such instrument is recognized through Statement of
Profit and Loss.

Financial asset at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)
Any financial instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized
cost or as FVOCI, is classified to be measured at FVTPL.

Financial instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost except when designated
to be measured at FVTPL.
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Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 (Continued)

C. IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The provision for credit risks, which is recognized in accordance with the expected credit loss
model specified by Ind AS 109 and in accordance with uniform standards applied,
encompasses all financial assets measured at amortized cost. The calculation of the
provision for credit risks generally takes into account the exposure at default, the probability
of default and the loss given default.

Financial assets are subject to credit risks, which are taken into account by recognizing the
amount of the expected loss; such allowances are recognized for both financial assets with
objective evidence of impairment and non-impaired financial assets.

The general approach is used for financial assets measured at amortized cost on initial
recognition. Financial assets are broken down into three stages in the general approach.
Stage 1 consists of financial assets that are being recognized for the first time or that have
not demonstrated any significant increase in probability of default since initial recognition.
In this stage, the model requires the calculation of an expected credit loss for the next
twelve months. Stage 2 consists of financial assets for which there is a significant increase in
credit risk. Financial assets demonstrating objective indications of impairment are allocated
to Stage 3. In Stages 2 and 3, an expected credit loss is calculated for the entire remaining
maturity of the asset.

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it
is more than 30 days past due. For the wholesale portfolio, the credit risk is assumed to have
been increased based on change in the risk class according to the master scale as of
reporting date is compared with the risk class according to master scale as of initial
recognition

The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when:

- the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full, without
recourse by the Company to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or

- the financial asset is 90 days or more past due

- For wholesale portfolio, it also depends on the risk class as per the master scale of the
Company

In the case of financial assets already impaired on initial recognition and classified as
purchase originated and impaired assets (“POCI”) for the purposes of the disclosures, the
provision for credit risks is recognized in subsequent measurement on the basis of the
cumulative changes in the expected credit loss for the entire life of the asset concerned. Any
financial instrument already classified as impaired on initial recognition remains in this stage
until it is derecognized.

Both historical information, such as average historical default probabilities for each
portfolio, and forward- looking information is used to determine the measurement
parameters for calculating the provision for credit risks.

Impairment arises in a number of situations, such as delayed payment over a certain period,
the initiation of enforcement measures, the threat of insolvency or over indebtedness,
application for or the initiation of insolvency proceedings, or the failure of restructuring
measures. 2N
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Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 (Continued)

Reviews are regularly carried out to ensure that the allowances are appropriate.
Uncollectible loans or receivables that are already subject to a workout process and for
which all collateral has been recovered and all further options for recovering the loan or
receivable have been exhausted are written off directly. Any valuation allowances previously
recognized are utilized. Income subsequently collected in connection with loans or
receivables already written off is recognized in profit or loss.

Loans and receivables are reported in the balance sheet at the net carrying amount. The
provision for credit risks relating to off-balance sheet irrevocable credit commitments is
recognized with- in other liabilities.

D. WRITE-OFFS

Financial assets are written off either partially or in their entirety when there is no realistic
prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that the
borrower does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash
flows to repay the amounts. If the amount to be written off is greater than the accumulated
loss allowance, the difference is first treated as an addition to the allowance that is then
applied against the gross carrying amount. Any subsequent recoveries are credited to
impairment on financial instruments in Statement of Profit and Loss. However, financial
assets that are written off may be subject to enforcement activities to comply with the
Company’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.

E. DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar

financial assets) is primarily derecognised when:

- The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

- The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has

entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained

the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained

substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset,

the Company continues to recognize the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s

continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognizes an associated liability.

The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the

rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is
measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

RN 22\

/, ‘ N Ij I'\‘.\‘ N 3
(Chartered Acdountun L \7 %
* _FRN 301122~

e ,Mllmba—\_” /



Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the
asset (or the carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset derecognised) and the
sum of (i) the consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability
assumed) and (ii) any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in OCl is recognised
in statement of profit or loss.

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are
discharged or cancelled, or expire.

F. MODIFICATION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Financial assets

If the terms of a financial asset are modified, the Company evaluates whether the cash flows
of the modified asset are substantially different. If the cash flows are substantially different,
then the contractual rights to cash flows from the original financial asset are deemed to
have expired. In this case, the original financial asset is derecognised and a new financial
asset is recognised at fair value.

If the cash flows of the modified asset carried at amortised cost are not substantially
different, then the modification does not result in derecognition of the financial asset. In this
case, the Company recalculates the gross carrying amount of the financial asset as the
present value of the renegotiated or modified contractual cash flows that are discounted at
the financial asset's original effective interest rate and recognises the amount arising from
adjusting the gross carrying amount as a modification gain or loss in the Statement of Profit
and Loss. Any costs or fees incurred adjust the carrying amount of the modified financial
asset and are amortised over the remaining term of the modified financial asset. If such a
modification is carried out because of financial difficulties of the borrower, then the gain or
loss is presented together with impairment losses, in other cases, it is presented as interest
income.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash
flows of the modified liability are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability
based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified
terms is recognised in statement of profit or loss.

G. MEASUREMENT OF FAIR VALUES

The Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values
for financial instruments.

The finance department of the Company includes a team that performs the valuations of
financial assets and liabilities required for financial reporting purposes, including level 3 fair
values. This team reports directly to the Chief Financial Officer (‘CFO’). The management
regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party
information, such as broker quotes or pricing services, is used to measure fair values, then
the management assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the
conclusion that such valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS, including the level in the
fair value hierarchy in which such valuations should be classified.
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Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 (Continued)

When measuring the fair value of a financial asset or a financial liability, the Company uses

observable market data as far as possible. Fair values are categorized into different levels in

a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows.

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2:inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are ohservable for the asset
or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels
of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in
the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the
entire measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of
the reporting period during which the change has occurred.

H. OFFSETTING OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
Balance Sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

|. FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of
such transactions. Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities as at the balance sheet
date are translated at the rates of exchange prevailing on the balance sheet date. Gains and
losses arising on account of differences in foreign exchange rates on settlement/translation of
foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are recognized in the statement of profit and
loss.

J. TRADE RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services performed in
the ordinary course of business. Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of
consideration that is unconditional unless they contain significant financing components,
when they are recognised at fair value. The Company holds the trade receivables with the
objective to collect the contractual cash flows and therefore, measures them subsequently
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less allowance.

K. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to
the end of financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid
within 30 days of recognition. Trade and other payables are recognised initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 (Continued)

L. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment are stated at acquisition cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment, if any. Costs directly attributable to acquisition are capitalized until the
property, plant and equipment are ready for use, as intended by management. Gain or
losses arising from the retirement or disposal of property, plant and equipment are
determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment and recognized as income or expense in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

Depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis on a Straight Line Method over the estimated
useful life of property, plant and equipment at rates which are equal to or higher than the
rates prescribed under Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013 in order to reflect the actual
usage of property, plant and equipment. The estimates of useful lives of property, plant and
equipment, based on a technical evaluation, are reviewed periodically, including at each
financial year end. Estimated useful lives over which assets are depreciated are as follows:

Asset Type Useful life in years |
Building 30 ' _J
Leasehold Improvements Over the lease period

Office Equipment 5

Computers - Servers and Networks 6

Computers - Laptops and Desktops 3

Furniture and Fixtures - 10
‘Vehicles 8

Vehicles given on operating lease Over the lease period

Used property, plant and equipment purchased are depreciated over the residual useful life
from the date of original purchase. For property, plant and equipment purchased and sold
during the year, depreciation is provided on pro rata basis by the Company.

Property, plant and equipment costing less than Rs.5,000 are fully depreciated in the year of
purchase.

M. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment, if any.
Intangible assets are amortized over their estimated useful lives on a straight line basis, from
the date they are available for use. Estimated useful life over which intangible assets are
amortised are as follows:

AssetType Useful life in ye_ars
Software 4
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Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 (Continued)

N. INTANGIBLE ASSETS UNDER DEVELOPMENT

Development costs that are directly attributable to the design and testing of identifiable and
unique software products controlled by the Company are recognised as intangible assets
when the following criteria are met:
e itistechnically feasible to complete the software so that it will be available for use
e management intends to complete the software and use or sell it
e there is an ability to use or sell the software
e it can be demonstrated how the software will generate probable future economic
benefits
¢ adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and
to use or sell the software are available, and
s the expenditure attributable to the software during its development can be reliably
measured.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as part of the intangible assets under
development include employee costs and an appropriate portion of relevant
overheads. Capitalised development costs are recorded as intangible assets and amortised
from the point at which the asset is available for use.

O. BORROWING COST

Borrowing costs other than those directly attributable to qualifying ‘Property, Plant and
Equipment are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

P. INCOME TAX

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in statement of
profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or in
QocCl.

Current tax

Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid in respect of taxable income for
the year in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961. Current tax comprises the expected
tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to
the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. It is measured using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for
taxation purposes.

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and based on management’s
judgement, are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax
benefit will be realised; such reductions are reversed when the probability of future taxable
profits improves.

Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised to

the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will be available against
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Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 (Continued)

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary
differences when they reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. It is measured using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if:

a)

b)

the Company has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities; and

the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority.

Q. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Provident fund is a defined contribution scheme and the contributions as required by the
statute to Government Provident Fund are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss
when due.

The Company contributes up to 10% of eligible employees salary per annum, to the New
Pension Fund administered by a Pension Fund Regulatory and Development Authority
(PFRDA) appointed pensién furd mianager. The Company recognizes such contributions
as an expense in the year when an employee renders the related service.

Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation and is wholly unfunded. The Company
accounts for liability for future gratuity benefits based on actuarial valuation. The net
present value of the Company’s obligation towards the same is actuarially determined
based on the projected unit credit method as at the Balance Sheet date.

Remeasurement of all defined benefit plans, which comprise actuarial gains and losses
are recognised immediately in other comprehensive income in the year they are incurred.
Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent period.
Remeasurement gains or losses on long term compensated absences that are classified as
other long term benefits are recognised in profit or loss. Net interest expense (income)
on the net defined liability {(assets) is computed by applying the discount rate, used to
measure the net defined liability (asset), to the net defined liability (asset) at the start of
the financial year after taking into account any changes as a result of contribution and
benefit payments during the year. Net interest expense and other expenses related to
defined benefit plans are recognised in statement of profit or loss. ‘

The Company accrues the liability for compensated absences based on the actuarial
valuation as at the balance sheet date conducted by an independent actuary which
includes assumptions about demographics, early retirement, salary increases, interest
rates and leave utilisation. The net present value of the Company’s obligation is
determined based on the projected unit credit method as at the Balance Sheet date.




Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 (Continued)

R. SEGMENTAL REPORTING

The Company’s operating segments are established on the basis of those components of the
Company that are evaluated regularly by the Managing Director (the ‘Chief Operating
Decision Maker’ as defined in Ind AS 108 - ‘Operating Segments’), in deciding how to allocate
resources and in assessing performance. These have been identified taking into account
nature of products and services, the differing risks and returns and the internal business
reporting systems.

Company has two principal operating and reporting segments viz
- Retail finance
- Dealer finance

Revenue and Expenses have been identified to a segment on the basis of relationship to
operating activities of the segment. Revenue and Expenses which relate to the Company as a
whole and are not allocable to a segment on reasonable basis have been disclosed as
“Unallocable”.

Segment Assets and Segment Liabilities represent Assets and Liabilities in respective
segments. Investments, tax related assets and other assets and liabilities that cannot be
allocated to a segment on reasonable basis have been disclosed as “Unallocable”.

S. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period
attributable to equity shareholders (after deducting preference dividends and attributable
taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.
Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the extent that they
were entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during the
reporting period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
period is adjusted for events of bonus issue; bonus element in a rights issue to existing
shareholders; share split; and reverse share split (consolidation of shares).

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding
during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

T. PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognised when
there is present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that there will be an
outflow of resources. Contingent liabilities are not recognised but disclosed in the notes.
Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in financial statements.

U. OPERATING LEASES AS A LESSEE

Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the leased term, are classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases are generally recognised in statement of profit or loss on a straight line
basis over the term of the- [e‘nse uriless. such payments are structured to increase in line W‘I;l,'l/
expected gener I/T:rﬂa'l.km-—tcr mmpensate for the lessors expected inflationary ?1
increases.
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Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 (Continued)

V. OPERATING LEASES AS A LESSOR

Lease income from operating leases where the group is a lessor is recognised in income on a
straight-line basis over the lease term unless the receipts are structured to increase in line
with expected general inflation to compensate for the expected inflationary cost increases.
The respective leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on their nature.

W.CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before
extraordinary items and tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and
any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from
operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated based on the
available information.

X. IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

The carrying values of assets at each balance sheet date are reviewed for impairment if any
indication of impairment exists. If the carrying amount of the assets exceed the estimated
recoverable amount, an impairment is recognised for such excess amount.

The recoverable amount is the greater of the fair value less costs of disposal and their value
in use. Value in use is arrived at by discounting the future cash flows to their present value
based on an appropriate discount factor.

When there is indication that an impairment loss recognised for an asset {(other than a
revalued asset) in earlier accounting periods which no longer exists or may have decreased,
such reversal of impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, to the
extent the amount was previously charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss. In case of
revalued assets, such reversal is not recognized.

Y. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash on hand and balances with banks. It also
comprises of short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less that are

readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of
changes in value.

Z. CONTRIBUTED EQUITY

Equity shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
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Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 (Continued)

AA. NON-CURENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

AB.

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use and a sale is
considered highly probable. They are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and
fair value less costs to sell, except for assets such as deferred tax assets, assets arising from
employee benefits, financial assets and contractual rights under insurance contracts, which
are specifically exempt from this requirement.

An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or subsequent write-down of the asset to fair
value less costs to sell. A gain is recognised for any subsequent increases in fair value less
costs to sell of an asset, but not in excess of any cumulative impairment loss previously
recognised. A gain or loss not previously recognised by the date of the sale of the non-
current asset is recognised at the date of de-recognition.

Non-current assets that are not depreciated or amortised while they are classified as held
for sale. Interest and other expenses attributable to the liabilities of a disposal group
classified as held for sale continue to be recognised.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale and the assets of a disposal group classified as
held for sale are presented separately from the other assets in the balance sheet

Transfer to special reserve

As per section 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (the RBI Act), the company is
transferring an amount not less than 20 per cent of its net profit to a reserve fund before
declaring any dividend. Appropriation from this reserve fund is permitted only for the
purpose specified by RBI.

AC. Goods and service tax

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the goods and services tax paid, except:

() when the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the
taxation authority, in which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of
acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable;

(i) when receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included.

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as
part of receivables or payables in the balance sheet.
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Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 (Continued)

AD. Approach on exemptions under Ind AS 101 First Time Adoption of Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS):

The Company has adopted Ind AS with effect from April 1st 2018 with comparatives being
restated. Accordingly the impact of transition has been provided in the Opening Reserves
as at April 1, 2017. The figures for the previous period have been restated, regrouped and
reclassified wherever required to comply with the requirement of Ind AS and Schedule 1l -
Division 111

The Company has elected to take the following exemption as per Ind AS 101 to facilitate
transition from Indian GAAP (‘previous GAAP’) to Ind AS.

R Deemed cost

The Company has elected to account for property plant and equipment and
intangible assets at their previous GAAP carrying amount as on April 01 2017 i.e.
deemed cost as at the date of transition.

Il. Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities

The Company has elected to apply derecognition requirements in Ind AS 109
prospectively for transactions occurring on or after Aprit 01 2017.

. Classification of financial assets

The Company has elected to classify the financial assets outstanding on the date of
transition as per requirements in Ind AS 109 based on facts and circumstances
available on April 01 2017.




Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 {continued)

2) Cash and cash equivalents

particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 April 01, 2017
(Rupees in Lakhs) (Rupees in Lakhs) {Rupees in Lakhs})
Cash on Hand 0.06 0.08} 0.17
Bank Balance in
Current Account 670,02 313.81 273.78
670.08| 313.89| 273.95|
There are no repatriation restriction with regards to cash and cash equivalents as at the end of reporting period and prior periods
3) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
. March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 April 01, 2017
Particulars . . .
(Rupees in Lakhs) {Rupees in Lakhs) (Rupees in Lakhs)
Bank deposits (due to mature after 12 months from the reporting date) 1.00 1.00 1.00
(Deposits are held with a Bank for issuing Bank Guarantee in favour of VAT
authorities)
Other Bank balances # E . 59.83
1.00 1.00 60.83
# Bank balances as at April 01, 2017 includes Rs. 59.83 Lakhs marked as lien by bank as per A P no 2888 of 2017 dated 19th January 2017 issued by Securities and
Exchange Board of India against forclosure of loan by Pearls Infrastructure Project Limited,
4) Receivables
. March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 April 01, 2017
Particulars N ) )
{Rupees in Lakhs) (Rupees in Lakhs) {Rupees in Lakhs)
Trade Receivables
Unsecured, considered good 2,586.45 2,220.42 908.71
Total (1) 2,586.45 2,220.42 908.71
Other Receivables
Unsecured, considered good - -|
Total (11} -
2,586.45 2,220.42 90871 |
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Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 (continued)

5) Loans

particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 April 01, 2017
(Rupees in Lakhs) (Rupees in Lakhs) (Rupees in Lakhs)
(A) Classification
Amortised cost:
(i) Vehicle Finance # 500,877.92 561,719.74 591,885.88
(i) Term Loans 28,929.50 18,195.38 17,491.77

Fair Value:
- through profit & Loss - . .
- designated at fair value through OCI = : -

Total Gross (A) 529,807.42 579,915.12 609,377.65
Less: Impairment allowance (38,495.54) (22,041.18) (19,241.21)
Total Net (A) 491,311.88 557,873.94 590,136.44
(B) (i) Secured by tangible assets* 389,774.78 452,016.81 480,944.37
(i) Unsecured 140,032.64 127,898.31 128,433.28
Total Gross (B) 529,807.42 579,915.12 609,377.65
Less: Impairment allowance (38,495.54) (22,041.18) (19,241.21)
Total Net (B) 491,311.88 557,873.94 590,136.44

(C)(1} |Loans in India
(i) Public Sector - - -

(i) Others 529,807.42 579,915.12 609,377.65
Total Gross (C) {1) 529,807.42 579,915.12 609,377.65
Less: Impairment allowance (38,495.54) (22,041.18) (19,241.21)
Total Net (C) (1) 491,311.88 557,873.94 590,136.44

(C)(I) |Loans outside India
Less: Impairment allowance - #
Total Net (C) (ll) - - -

Total (C) (1} and (11} 491,311.88 557,873.94 590,136.44

* Vehicle finance is secured by hypothecation of vehicles and / or undertaking to create security. Term Loans are
secured against hypothecation of immovable properties

#Loans include repossessed cars having book value Rs. 1,413.29 Lakhs (March 31, 2018: 132.13 Lakhs, April 01,
2017: Rs. 365.15 Lakhs)
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Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 {continued)

6) Other Financial Assets

particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 April 01, 2017
(Rupees in Lakhs) {Rupees in Lakhs) {Rupees in Lakhs)

Depasits 529.99 452.30 415.32

Advances recoverable in cash 87.03 128.35 63.41
Total 617.02 580.65 478.73
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Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 (continued)

7(b) Capital work in progress and Intangible Assets under Development

[Aupees In Lakhs)

Particulars

Capital work-In-progress

Intanglible Assets under
Development

Total

Opening balance as on Aprll 01, 2017 84.46 78.11 162,57
Additions during the year 1.22 1,063.25 1,064.47
Capitalized during the year {79.16) {71.11) (150.27)
Closing balance as on March 31, 2018 B B 6.52 1,070.25 1,076.77
Openling balance as on March 31, 2018 6.52 1,070.25 1,076.77
Additions during the year 28.07 910.78 938.85
Capitalized during the year (6.13) (59.07) (65.20)
Closing balance as on March 31, 2019 28.46 1,921.96 1,950.42
Capital work in progress: Includes office equipments and computers.
Intangible Assets under Development: Includes softwares for operational activities
8(a) Other non financial assets

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 April 01, 2017

Particulars

{Rupees in Lakhs)

(Rupees In Lakhs}

(Rupees in Lakhs)

Advance Tax and TDS & TCS (Net of provision)
Service Tax Receivable
Other Current Assets
{Other current assets includes advances to vendors and prepaid expenses)
Assets Held for Sale

299.86 543.24 20.73
2,534.09 2,534.08 2,495.81
527.50 814.55 764.00
493.23 586.76 624.51
3,361.45 3,891.87 3,280.54

8(b) Assets held for sale

Particulars

March 31, 2019
(Rupees in Lakhs})

March 31, 2018
(Rupees in Lakhs)

April 01, 2017
{Rupees in Lakhs)

Assets Held for Sale 493.23 586.76 624.51
(Assets held for sale includes the properties acquired in settlement of loans. The asset is being
actively marketed and is expected to be sold in a due course)
493.23 586.76 624.51
9) Payables
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 April 01, 2017
Particulars

(Rupees in Lakhs)

(Rupees in Lakhs)

(Rupees in Lakhs)

(1) Trade payables
{i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
Total (i)
{ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises
-Payable for Vehicle Finance
-Other Trade Payables
Total {ii)
(11} Other payables
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

Total (I + i)

Refer to nate 35 for details for micro enterprises and small enterprises
(There are no amounts due for payment to the investor education and protection fund under

Section 125 of the Companies Act 2013 )

2.19

2.19

16,245.73 20,315.25 26,284.53
402.12 1,742.70 942.64
16,647.85 22,057.95 27,227.17
16,647.85 22,057.95 27,229.36
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Valkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Financial St

for the year ended March 31, 2019 {continued)

10) Debt securities

Particulars

March 31, 2019
{Rupees In Lakhs)

March 31, 2018
(Rupees in Lakhs)

April 01, 2017
{Rupees in Lakhs)

Classificatlon:

Amortised Cost

- Non convertible debentures (NCDs}#
[Refer note 10 {a) below]

Fair Value:

- through profit 8 Loss

- designated at fair value through OCI

Total (A}
Debt securities in India

Debt securities outside India
Total (B}

146,730.78 230,133.63 166,844.41
~146,730.78 230,133.63 166,844.41
146,730.78 230,133.63 166,844,41
146,730.78 230,133.63 166,844.41

# Non Convertible Debentures are secured by way of mortgage of specific inmovable property of Rs. 22.87 Lakhs {March 31, 2018 - Rs.23.85 Lakhs and April 01, 2017 Rs. 24 83 Lakhs } and specific receivables of the
Company arising out of auto loan of Gross Book Value of Rs, 529,807.42 Lakhs and Net of ECL provision of Rs. 491,311 88 Lakhs (March 31, 2018 - Grass Book Value of Rs. 579,915.12 Lakhs and Net of ECL provision
Rs. 557,873.94 Lakhs and April 01, 2017 - Gross Book Value of Rs. 609,377.65 Lakhs and Net of ECL provision Rs. 590,136.44 Lakhs )

Note 10 (a): NCDs repayment detalls

Particulars

Allotment Date

Interest Rate

Redemption Date

March 31, 2019
(Rupees in Lakhs)

March 31, 2018
{Rupees in Lakhs)

April 01, 2017
(Rupees In Lakhs)

1500 units, VWFPL NCD F FY 2017-18, face value of Rs.
1,000,000 each

2500 units, VWFPL NCD D FY 2017-18, face value of Rs.
1,000,000 each

1500 units, VWFPL NCD E FY 2017-18, face value of Rs
1,000,000 each

3000 units, VWFPL NCD C FY 2017-18, face value of Rs
1,000,000 each

1000 units, VWFPL NCD B FY 2017-18, face value of Rs,
1,000,000 each

2000 units, VWFPL NCD A 02 FY 2015-16, face value of Rs,
1,000,000 each

2000 units, VWFPL NCD A 02 FY 2016-17, face value of Rs,
1,000,000 each

500 units, VWFPL NCD A FY 2017-18, face value of Rs,
1,000,000 each

1500 units, VWFPL NCD ‘B’ 02 FY 2015-16, face value of]|
Rs. 1,000,000 each

1000 units, VWFPL NCD B FY 2016-17, face value of Rs.
1,000,000 each

2000 units, VWFPL NCD A 01 FY 2016-17, face value of Rs
1,000,000 each

2000 units, VWFPL NCD A 01 FY 2015-16, face value of Rs,
1,000,000 each

1500 units, VWFPL NCD ‘B' 01 FY 2015-16, face value of
Rs. 1,000,000 each

4000 units, VWFPL NCD ‘A’ FY 2014-15, face value of Rs
1,000,000 each

{These debentures are secured by way of Martgage of|
specific immovable property and specific receivables of
the Company arising out of loan.)

Add: Adjustment for interest accured and transaction
costs as per EIR

December 5, 2017

September 11, 2017

December 5, 2017

July 11,2017

June 12, 2017

May 29, 2015

September 20, 2016

June 12, 2017

December 28, 2015

October 10, 2016

Septemnber 20, 2016

May 29, 2015

December 28, 2015

December 1, 2014

7.62%

7.50%

7.62%

7.83%

8.05%

8.65%

8.47%

7.98%

8.63%

7.93%

8.40%

8.65%

8.63%

885%

December 4, 2020

September 11, 2020

August 31, 2020

July 13, 2020

June 19, 2020

May 29, 2020

September 20, 2019

June 12, 2019

December 28, 2018

October 10, 2018

September 20, 2018

July 30, 2018

lune 28, 2018

December 1, 2017

15,000.00 15,000.00
25,000.00 25,000.00
15,000.00 15,000,00
30,000.00 30,000.00
10,000.00 10,000.00

20,000.00 20,000.00 20,000.00

20,000.00 20,000.00 20,000.00
5,000 00 5,000.00

15,000.00 15,000.00

10,000.00 10,000.00

20,000.00 20,000.00

20,000.00 20,000.00

- 15,000.00 15,000.00

40,000.00

6,730.78 10,133 63 6,844.41

146,730.78 230,133.63 166,844.41
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Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 {continued)

11} Borrowings other than debt securities

{Rupees in Lakhs)

Particulars

March 31, 2019
{Rupees in Lakhs)

March 31, 2018
{Rupees in Lakhs)

April 01, 2017
{Rupees in Lakhs)

Classification:

Amortised Cost

{a) Term loans* [Refer Note 11{a)]

(b) Bank overdraft*

{c) Working capital demand loans from banks* [Refer Note 11{b}]
{d) Commercial papers [Refer Note 11{c)]

Fair Value:

- through profit & Loss

- designated at fair value through OCl

Total (A)

Borrowings in India
Borrowings outside India

Total (B)

Secured Borrowings
Unsecured Borrowings

Total (C)

20,765.75 20,693.84 33,194.46

10,783.10 76,005.05 52,442.33

73,923.39 47,441.43 =
101,847.70 34,248.58 187,788.23
207,319.94 178,388.90 273,425.02
207,319.94 178,388.90 273,425,02
207,319.94 178,388.90 273,425.02
207,319.94 178,388.90 273,425.02
207,319.94 178,388.90 273,425.02

*These are guaranteed by corporate guarantee issued by Volkswagen Financial Services A.G., Germany, the holding company

Note 11 {a): Term loan repayment details

Particulars

Rate of Interest

March 31, 2019
{Rupees In Lakhs)

March 31, 2018
(Rupees in Lakhs)

April 01, 2017
{Rupees [n Lakhs)

Schedule of Term loans
From Banks
Term loan from bank repayable on May 31, 2019

From Financial Institutlons
Term loan from financial institution repayable on June 28, 2019
Term loan from financial institution repayable on May 31, 2013

Term loan from financial institution repayable on April 07, 2017

Add: Adjustment for interest accured and transaction costs as pe

Services A.G., Germany)

rEIR

(Terms loans are guaranteed by corporate guarantee issued by Volkswagen Financial

8.75%

8.65%
8.75%
8.83%

10,000.00 10,000.00 10,000.00
5,000.00 5,000.00 5,000.00
5,000.00 5,000.00 5,000.00

= 12,500.00
765.75 693.84 694.46
20,765.75 20,693.84 33,194.46

%
*

o
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Volkswagen FInance Private Limlted

Notes to the Financial for the year ended March 31, 2019 {conti 1)

Note 11 {h}: Warking capital repay detalls

Particulars

Rate of Interest

March 31, 2019
{Rupees In Lakhs)

March 31, 2018
{Rupees In Lakhs)

April 01, 2017
{Rupees in Lakhs)

Schedule of Working Capltal Demand Loans from Banks
WorkIng capital demand loan repayable on March 13, 2020
Working capital demand loan repayable on August 27, 2019
Working capital demand loan repayable on July 26, 2019
Working capital demand loan repayable on July 12, 2019
Working capltal demand loan repayable on April 05, 2019
Working capital demand loan repayable on Aprll 04, 2019
Working capital demand loan repayable on November 30, 2018
Working capital demand loan repayable on November 26, 2018
Working capital demand loan repayable on November 13, 2018
Working capital demand loan repayable on May 25, 2018
WorkIng capital demand loan repayable on May 25, 2018

Add: Adjustment for interest accured and transaction costs as per EIR

Total Working Capital Demand Loans from Banks

(Working Capital Demand Loans are guaranteed by corporate guarantee issued by
Volkswagen Financial Services A.G., Germany)

7.82%
7.95%
7.80%
7.99%
8.25%
8.39%
7.10%
7.10%
7.10%
7.08%
7.08%

10,000.00
20,000.00
15,900.00
3,000.00
5,000.00 =
20,000.00
5,000.00
- 10,000.00
10,000.00
- 14,400.00 .
8,000.00
23.39 41.43
73,923.39 47,441.43
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Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Flnancial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 {continued)

Note 11 [c}:Commercial papors repayment details

(Rupees in Lalhs)

Particulars

Rate of
Interest

March 31, 2019

March 31, 2018

April 01, 2017

Schedule of Commerclal papers

2700 units, Face Value of Rs.
4000 units, Face Value of Rs,
3000 units, Face Value of Rs.
3000 units, Face Value of Rs.
4000 units, Face Value of Rs.
4000 units, Face Value of Rs.
2000 units, Face Value of Rs.
2700 units, Face Value of Rs.
1000 units, Face Value of Rs.

1400 units, Face Value of Rs

2200 units, Face Value of Rs.
2000 units, Face Value of Rs,
1000 units, Face Value of Rs.
3000 units, Face Value of Rs.
4000 units, Face Value of Rs.

500,000 each repayable on April 26, 2019
500,000 each repayable on April 15, 2019
500,000 each repayable on January 15, 2020
500,000 each repayable on Aprit 22, 2019
500,000 each repayable on May 23, 2019
500,000 each repayable on June 12, 2019
500,000 each repayable on January 25, 2019
500,000 each repayable on October 17, 2018
500,000 each repayable on July 27, 2018
500,000 each repayable on May 03, 2018
500,000 each repayable on February 23, 2018
500,000 each repayable on January 19, 2018
500,000 each repayable on January 09, 2018
500,000 each repayable on December 08, 2017
500,000 each repayable on November 17, 2017

500 units, Face Value of Rs. 500,000 each repayable on November 10, 2017
500 units, Face Value of Rs, 500,000 each repayable on October 24, 2017

1000 units, Face Value of Rs.
2000 units, Face Value of Rs.
1000 units, Face Value of Rs.
2500 units, Face Value of Rs.
1000 units, Face Value of Rs.
1500 units, Face Value of Rs.
1000 units, Face Value of Rs.
2000 units, Face Value of Rs.
1000 units, Face Value of Rs.
2000 units, Face Value of Rs.

500,000 each repayable on October 09, 2017
500,000 each repayable on August 24, 2017
500,000 each repayable on August 02, 2017
500,000 each repayable on August 02, 2017
500,000 each repayable on July 28, 2017
500,000 each repayable on July 28, 2017
500,000 each repayable on june 30, 2017
500,000 each repayable on June 21, 2017
500,000 each repayable on May 22, 2017
500,000 each repayable on May 19, 2017

500 units, Face Value of Rs. 500,000 each repayable on May 17, 2017
500 units, Face Value of Rs. 500,000 each repayable on May 17, 2017

4000 units, Face Value of Rs,
2000 units, Face Value of Rs.
1400 units, Face Value of Rs,
2000 units, Face Value of Rs.

Total Commercial Papers

500,000 each repayable on May 02, 2017
500,000 each repayable on May 02, 2017
500,000 each repayable on April 21, 2017
500,000 each repayable on Apri! 06, 2017

8.90%
7.90%
8.50%
7.80%
7.93%
7.68%
7.30%
7.50%
6.96%
7.35%
7.30%
7.60%
7.60%
7.20%
7.65%
7.80%
7.60%
7.55%
7.23%
8.12%
8.12%
8.12%
8.12%
8.00%
6.70%
7.13%
6.84%
7.10%
7.10%
7.15%
7.15%
8.30%
7.20%

13,421.13
19,940.56
14,067.56
14,933.54
19,782.27
19,702.64

9,442.68
12,952.32
4,895.60
6,957.98

10,317.35
9,433.01
4,726.18

14,298.95

19,087.96
2,389.46
2,400.34
4,816.29
9,722.35
4,873.46

12,176.74
4,878.40
7,317.87
4,907.53
9,853.73
4,951.04
9,911.02
2,478.00
2,478.01

16,869.32
9,940.31
6,970.60
9,990.31

101,847.70

34,248.58

187,788.23
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Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 (continued)

12) Other financial liabilities

Particulars

March 31, 2019
(Rupees in Lakhs)

March 31, 2018
(Rupees in Lakhs)

April 01, 2017
(Rupees in Lakhs)

Creditors for Capital Expenditure 524.63 291.08 19.00
Creditors for Expenses 2,077.11 1,627.25 209.98
Dues to Employees 764.24 842.37 946.00
3,365.98 2,760.70 1,174.98
13) Other non financial liabilities
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 April 01, 2017

Particulars

(Rupees in Lakhs)

(Rupees in Lakhs)

{Rupees in Lakhs)

Income Received in Advance
Employee Benefits
Gratuity (Refer note 26)
Leave Encashment
Provision for Expenses

Other Liabilities {including statutory dues)

Provision for Tax {Net of Advance Tax and Tax Deducted at Source, refer note

37)

429.08 403.51 326.57
180.81 195.64 192.95
96.72 30.69 39.43
2,853.74 1,895.28 1,366.90
403.60 82.36 131.88
2,863.12 768.96 634.57
6,827.07 3,376.44 2,692.30
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Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Financlal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 {continued)

14) Equity Share Capital

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 April 01, 2017
(Rupees In Lakhs) {Rupees In Lakhs) (Rupees in Lakhs)

Authorised:
146,610,000 (Ma'rch 31, 2018: 146,610,000, April 01, 2017; 146,610,000} 14,661.00 14,661.00 14,661.00
Category 'A' Equity Shares of Rs,10 each
1,482,390,000 (March 31, 2018: 1,482,390,000, April 01, 2017: 1,482,390,000) VTIEDT TG0 481239100
Category 'B' Equity Shares of Rs.10 each

162,900.00 162,500.00 162,900.00
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up
105,192,207 {March 31, 2018: 105,192,207; April 01, 2017 : 105,192,207)
Category 'A' Equity Shares of Rs.10 each, fully paid up

: ' 10,519.22 10,519.22 10,519.22

1,063,609,937 {(March 31, 2018: 1,063,609,937; April 01, 2017: 1,063,609,937
Category ‘B’ Equity Shares of Rs.10 each, fully paid u|
) Sy i ve : 106,360.99 106,360.99 106,360.99

116,880.21 116,880.21 116,880.21
{a) Reconclllation of number of shares

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 Aprll 01, 2017

Barticulars Amount Amount Amount

No of shares

{Rupees In Lakhs)

No of shares

{Rupees in Lakhs}

No of shares

{Rupees In Lakhs})

Balance at the beginning year
Category 'A' Equity Shares
Category 'B' Equity Shares

Add: Shares Issued durlng the year
Category 'A' Equity Shares
Category 'B' Equity Shares

Balance at the end of the year
Category 'A’ Equity Shares
Category 'B' Equity Shares

105,192,207
1,063,609,937

105,192,207
1,063,609,937

10,519.22
106,360.99

10,519.22
106,360.99

105,192,207
1,063,609,937

105,192,207
1,063,609,937

10,519.22
106,360.99

10,519.22
106,360.99

105,192,207
1,063,609,937

105,192,207
1,063,609,937

10,519 22
106,360.99

10,519.22
106,360 99

{b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares

The Company's authorised share capital is divided into Category 'A' equity shares and Category 'B' equity shares having par value of Rs. 10 each, Category 'A' equity shares carry voting rights and dividend rights.
Category 'B' equity shares don’t have any voting rights and have dividend rights to the extent of 6% of profits. Category 'B' equity shares are non participating, non-cumulative and shall not be entitled to any surplus
on winding up or other distribution such as bonus shares etc. together with rights, privileges and conditions attaching thereto as may be determined by the Board of Directors from time to time.

{c) Shares held by holding company #

particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 Aprll 01, 2017 Percentage

{Rupees in Lakhs) {Rupees in Lakhs) {Rupees in Lakhs) holding
Equity Shares:
105,192,207 Category 'A’ equity shares (Previous Year 2018: 105,192,207, Previous Year 2017: 105,192,207) held by
Volkswagen Finance Overseas B.V,, Netherland, the subsidiary of Volkswagen Financial Services AG, Germany.

10,519.22 10,519.22 10,519.22 100%

1,063,609,937 Category 'B ' equity shares (Previous Year 2018: 1,063,609,937, Previous Year 2017: 1,063,609,937) held by
Volkswagen Financial Services A.G., Germany. 106,360.99 106,360.99 106,360 99 100%

# Based on the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017, The Company has considered Volkswagen Finance Overseas
B.V,Netherlandas its Holding Company (Previous Year: Volkswagen Financial Services A.G., Germany)
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Voalkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Financlal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 (continued)
{d) Detalls of shares held by each shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Particalars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 Aprll 01, 2017 Percentage

{No. of shares) {No. of shares) {No. of shares) holding
Equity Shares:
105,192,207 Category 'A' equity shares {Previous Year 2018: 105,192,207, Previous Year 2017: 105,192,207 heid by
Volkswagen Finance Overseas B.V., Netherland, the subsidiary of Volkswagen Financial Services AG, Germany.

105,192,207 105,192,207 105,192,207 100%

1,063,609,937 Category 'B ' equity shares {Previous Year 2018: 1,063,609,937, Previous Year 2017: 1,063,609,937) held by
Volkswagen Financial Services A.G., Germany. 1,063,609,937 1,063,609,937 1,063,609,937 100%
15) Other Equity

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 Aprit 01,2017

Particulars

{Rupees In Lakhs)

{Rupees In Lakhs)

{Rupees in Lakhs)

Special Reserves under section 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934
Retained earnings

TOTAL RESERVES

5,796.84
11,446.97

17,243.81

5,796.84 4,750.34
15,240.49 10,622.77
21,037.33 15,373.11 |

Speclal Reserves under section 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of Indla Act, 1934,

According to section 45-1C (1) of The Reserve Bank of India, it is required for every Non-Banking Financial Company to create a reserve fund and transfer a sum not less than 20% of net profit
every year before declaration of dividend. For preventing the defaults by the Non-Banking Financial Companies, this an added measure of protection created by the statute, It is created in order

to give the entity and its creditors protection from the effect of losses

Retained earnings

Retained earnings represents surplus / accumulated earnings of the Company and are availbale for distribution to shareholders.

Other equity: Movement

Particulars

March 31, 2019
{Rupees In Lakhs})

March 31, 2018
{Rupees in Lakhs}

April 01, 2017
{Rupees in Lakhs)

Special Reserves under section 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,
Balance at the beginning of the year
Transfered from Surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Balance at the end of the year

Retained Earnings

Balance at the beginning of the year

Profit / {Loss) for the period

Other Comprehensive Income for the period

Less: Transfer to Special Reserve under section 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of india Act, 1934.
Adjustment on accounting of Ind AS transition

Tax impact on account of Ind AS transition

|8alance at the end of the year

TOTAL RESERVES

5,796.84 4,750.34 3,651.41
1,046.50 1,098.93

5.796.84 5,796.84 | 4,75034 |
15,240.48 10,622.77 5,359.88
(3,813.89) 5,662.29 5,494.64

20.38 1.93 -

{1,046.50) {1,098.93)
1,326.17

(458.99)
11,446.97 15,240.49 10,622.77
_ 17,243.81 21,037.33 1537311
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Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 {cantinued)

16) Interest income using effective interest rate

Particulars

March 31, 2019
{Rupees in Lakhs)

March 31, 2018
{Rupees in Lakhs)

Classification:
On Financial Assets measured:
- at Amortised Cost

(i) Interest on loans (booked on effective interest rate (EIR) basis) 53,098.81 57,088.85
Interest income from investments - -
(ii) Interest on deposits with banks 13.47 72.25
(iii) Other interest income -
- through profit and Loss - =
-through OC =
Total 53,112.28 57,161.10
17) Fees and commission income
particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
{Rupees in Lakhs) {Rupees in Lakhs)
Processing Fees , 625.13 779.33
(Processing fees pertains to working capital loans of upto one year)
Service Income 4,876.53 2,848.64
5,501.66 3,627.97
18) Other operating income
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Particulars

{Rupees in Lakhs)

(Rupees in Lakhs)

Operating Lease Income 71.33 61.98
Income from customer services 206.75 347.75
Recovery from write off 115.68 -
393.76 409.73
19) Other Income
particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
{Rupees in Lakhs) {Rupees in Lakhs),
Foreign Exchange Gain (net) 71.88 -
Excess provision no longer required -
Miscellaneous Income 184.36
256.24
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Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 (continued)

20) Finance Cost

Particulars

March 31, 2019
(Rupees in Lakhs)

March 31, 2018
{Rupees In Lakhs)

Classification:
On Financial Assets measured :
- at Amortised Cost

'

(i) Interest on debt securities 14,210.06 17,043.23
(i) Interest on other than debt securities:
-Bank Overdraft 2,379.09 681.00
-Commercial Papers 6,108.46 10,726.96
-Working Capital Demand Loan 4,538.25 1,783.60
-Term Loans 1,745.00 1,763.14
(iii) Other borrowing costs 365.81 324.15
- through profit and Loss .
- through OCI = =
Total 29,346.67 32,322.08

21) Employee Benefits Expenses

Particulars

March 31, 2019

March 31, 2018

(Rupees in Lakhs) {Rupees In Lakhs)

Salaries, Bonus and Allowances 4,755.90 5,009.40
Contribution to Provident Fund and Other Funds 131,59 130.94
Gratuity 44,38 53.04
Leave Encashment 83.09 34.55
Staff Welfare 57.19 69.11
Training and Recrultment Expenses 112.33 95.36

5,184.48 5,392.40
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Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 (continued)

22) Other Expenses

March 31, 2019

March 31, 2018

particulars (Rupees in Lakhs) (Rupees in Lakhs)
Rent

-Building 663.10 578.16

-IT Equipment Lease Rent 78.40 50.47

-Others - 55.96
Legal, Professional and Consultancy Fees 1,024.20 873.75
Loan Acquisition Expenses 58.24 85.38
Auditor's Remuneration 113.26 101.24
(Please refer note A below)
Commission to Dealers 117.50 289.46
Commission to Dealers - Insurance 3,542.34 1,561.05
Information Technology Support Charges 2,272,719 1,670.67
Repairs and Maintenance - Others 305.59 330.67
Traveling and Conveyance 305.29 409.79
Printing and Stationery 34.91 47.11
Communication 65.19 87.34
Business Promoation 267.87 237.15
Facilities Management Charges 71.91 103.05
Electricity 60.42 63.29
Rates and Taxes 19.88 173.12
Bad Debts Written Off 3,541.43 3,191.98
Foreign Exchange Loss (net) - 102.81
Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets {net) 31.81 20.57
Directors Sitting Fees 26.97 23.00
Collection Agency Charges 762.65 572.20
Corporate Social Responsibility Spending 166.82 306.50

(Please refer note 41 for details)
Miscellaneous 227.94 310.10

13,758.51 11,244.82
Note A: Auditor's remuneration
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Particulars

(Rupees in Lakhs)

(Rupees in Lakhs)

Split of audit remuneration

- Statutory Audit 55.00 51.00
- Tax Audit 3.50 3.50
- Other Services 52.90 45.00
- Reimbursement of expenses 1.86 1.74
113.26 101.24
23) impairment on Financial Instruments
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Particulars

{Rupees in Lakhs)

{Rupees in Lakhs)

Classification:
On Financial Assets measured at :
- at Amortised Cost

{i) Loans

(i) Trade Receivables

- through profit and Loss
- through OCl
Total

16,454.36

2,799.97

16,454.36

2,799.97
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Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 (continued)

24) Net debt reconciliation

This section sets out the change in the liabilities or movement in net debt during the year arrising from financing activities i.e receipt / repayment of debts,

other borrowing and related finance cost.

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
(Rupees in Lakhs) | {Rupees in Lakhs)
Cash and cash equivalents 670.08 313.89
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents {including interest
. 1.00 1.00
receivable)
Debt securities (including interest accrued) {146,730.78) (230,133.63)
Borrowings other than debt securities {(including interest accrued) {207,319.94) (178,388.90)
Net debt (353,379.64) {408,207.64)

Movement in Net Debt during the year ended March 31, 2019

{Rupees In Lakhs)

Other Assets Liabilities from financing activities
Particulars Cash and cash BSRSERENCECHIEE - Barrowings other
. than cash and cash Debt securities . Total
equivalents X than debt securities
equivalents
Net debt as at March 31, 2018 313.89 1.00 (230,133.63) (178,388.90) (408,207.64)
Cashflows inflows 52,957.49 = (861,846.21}) (808,888.72)
Cashflows outflows {52,601.31) 80,000.00 833,425.85 860,824.54
Interest expense - (14,210.06) (14,770.80) (28,980.86)
Interest paid during the year 17,611.91 14,261.14 31,873.05
Discount on Commercial Papers - 5 - -
Net debt as at March 31, 2019 670.08 1.00 (146,731.78) (207,318.91) (353,379.64)
Movement in Net Debt during the year ended March 31, 2018
(Rupees in Lakhs)
Other Assets Liabilities from financing activities

Cash and cash

Bank balances other
than cash and cash

Debt securities

Borrowings other

Total

equivalents ) than debt securities
equivalents
Net debt as at April 01,2017 273.95 60.83 (166,844.41) (273,425.02) (439,934,65)
Cashflows inflows 33,207.79 - {100,000.00) (699,670.89) (766,463.10)
Cashflows outflows (33,167.85) (59.83) 40,000.00 791,445.09 798,217.41
Interest expense - - (17,043.23) (14,954.69) (31,997.92)
Interest paid during the year - 13,754.01 18,216.61 31,970.62
Discount on Commercial Papers - - - -
Net debt as at March 31, 2018 313.89 1.00 {230,133.63) (178,388.90) (408,207.64)
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Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 (continued)

25) Earnings per share

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit / (loss) for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company

by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit / (loss) attributable to equity holders of the Company by the
weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of Equity
shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity shares.

Particulars

March 31, 2019
(Rupees in Lakhs)

March 31, 2018
(Rupees in Lakhs)

Net (loss) / profit from continued operation attributable to equity holders

Category 'A' shares
Category 'B' shares

Category 'A' shares

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
Opening and Closing equity shares

Weighted average number of shares at year end

Weighted average number of shares at year end adjusted for the effect of
dilution

Basic earnings / (loss) per share (INR) (Face value of Rs. 10 per share)

Diluted earnings / (loss) per share {(INR) (Face value of Rs. 10 per share)

Category 'B' shares

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
Opening and Closing equity shares

Weighted average number of shares at year end

Weighted average number of shares at year end adjusted for the effect of
dilution

Basic earnings / (loss) per share (INR) (Face value of Rs. 10 per share)

Diluted earnings / (loss) per share (INR) {(Face value of Rs. 10 per share)

(341.42) 509.78
(3,452.09) 5,154.44
(3,793.51) 5,664.22

105,192,207 105,192,207
105,192,207 105,192,207
105,192,207 105,192,207
(0.32) 0.48
(0.32) 0.48

1,063,609,937

1,063,609,937

1,063,609,937 1,063,609,937
1,063,609,937 1,063,609,937
(0.32) 0.48
(0.32) 0.48

For the purpose of calculating Earnings per share, dividend upto 6% of the total capital belongs to both Category ‘A’
Equity shares and Category ‘B’ Equity shares proportionate to their weighted average share holding and dividend over

and above 6% belongs to Category ‘A’ Equity shares only (subject to approval from Board of Directors).

umbai

M




Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 (continued)

26) Employee benefit obligations

The Company has following post-employment defined benefit plans in India.

A. Defined Contribution Plans:

In accordance with Indian regulations, employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits under the provident fund, a defined contribution plan, in which, both
the employee and the Company contribute monthly at a determined rate. These contributions are made to a recognised provident fund and administered by a Board of
Trustees. The employee contributes 12% of his or her basic salary and the Company contributes an equal amount. The Company recognized Rs, 131.59 Lakhs {Previous
year. Rs. 130,94 Lakhs) for Provident Fund contribution in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

B. Defined Benefit Plan:

The Company offers the following employee benefit schemes to its employees:

In accordance with Payment of Gratuity Act, the Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering all employees. The plan provides a lump sum
payment to vested employees at retirement or termination of employment based on the respective employee's salary and the years of employment with the Company
subject to maximum of Rs. 20 lakhs. (Previous Year Rs. 20 lakhs).

The gratuity benefit is provided through unfunded pian and annual contributions are charged to the statement of profit and loss. Under the scheme, the settlement
obligation remains with the Company. Company accounts for the liability for future gratuity benefits based on an actuarial valuation. The net present value of the
Company's obligation towards the same is actuarially determined based on the projected unit credit method as at the Balance Sheet date.

Based on the actuarial valuation obtained in this respect, the following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan and the amounts recognised in the Company’s
financial statements as at balance sheet date:

particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 April 01, 2017
(Rupees in Lakhs) {Rupees in Lakhs) {Rupees in Lakhs)

Non Current

. 146.40 172.15 169.23
Gratuity
Total Non Current - 146.40 172.15 169.23
Current
Gratuity 3441 23.49 23.72
Total Current 34.41 23.49 23.72

Movement in net defined benefit (asset) liability

The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for net defined benefit (asset) liability

and its components:
(Rupees In Lakhs)

Present value of

Particulars L Fair value of plan assets Net amount
obligation

As at April 01, 2017 192.95 - 192.95
Current service cost 41,58 - 41.58
Past service cost - ]
Interest expense/(income) 11.46 - 11.46
Total amount recognised in profit and loss B 245.99 - 245,99
Remeasurements -

Return on plan assets, excluding amount included in interest
expense/(income) X -
(Gain )/loss from change in demographic assumptions - =
(Gain )/loss from change in financial assumptions (7.71) - {7.71}

Experience {gains)/losses 476 4.75
Actual Return on Plan assets - - -
‘Tatal amount recognised in other comprehensive income (2.95) - (2.95})
Employer contributions .
Benefit paymernts (47.40) - {47.40}
Asat March 31, 2018 195.64 : 195%4 |,
e 2 -
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Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 (continued)

(Rupees in Lakhs)

Particulars Preser_\t v?lue Ci Fair value of plan assets Net amount
obligation
As at March 31, 2018 195.64 = 195.64
Current service cost 45.28 - 4528
Past service cost - =
Interest expense/(income) I 13.61 = 13.61
Total amount recognised in profit and loss — 254,53 - 254.53
Remeastirements
Return on plan assets, excluding amount included in interest
expense/(income) )
[Gain }/loss from change in demographic assumptions (15.64) - (15.64)
(Gain )/loss from change in financial assumptions (11.49) (11.49)
Experience (gains)/losses (4.03) (4.03)
Actual Return on Plan assets - - -
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income (31.16) (31.16)
Employer contributions . .
Benefit payments (42.56) - (42.56)
As at March 31, 2019 180.81 = 180.81
g March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 April 01,2017
Particulars . :
{Rupees in Lakhs) {Rupees in Lakhs) (Rupees in Lakhs)
Present value of funded obligations - - -
Fair value of plan assets -
Surplus of funded plan -
Unfunded plan 180.81 195.64 192.95
Surplus of gratuity plan 180.81 195.64 192.95
Significant estimates: Actuarial assumptions and sensitlvity
The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows:
N March 31, 2019 March 31,2018 April 01,2017
Particulars . i .
(Rupees in Lakhs) (Rupees in Lakhs) (Rupees in Lakhs)
Discount rate 6.95% 7.40% 6.77%
Salary escalation rate 8.00% 10.00% 10.00%
JALM (2006-08) . IALM (2006-08)
Mortality Rate Ultimate EIN[[2006208 0 imete Ultimate
The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is:
Impact on defined benefit obligation
Increase in assumption (100 bps) Decrease in assumption (100 bps)
particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
{Rupees in Lakhs) {Rupees in Lakhs) (Rupees in Lakhs) {Rupees in Lakhs)
Discount rate 173.91 184.46 188.29 208.13
Salary escalation rate 188.15 207.71 173.92 184.62
Expected Return on plan assets

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in

some of the assumptions may be correlated .

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the prior period

C. Accumulated Compensated Absences

The Company provides for accumulated compensated absences as at the balance sheet date on the basis of an actuarial valuation. The Company recognized Rs. 83.09
Lakhs (Previous year. Rs. 34.55 Lakhs) for (unmenga{guhhwnws in the Statement of Profit and Loss
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Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 (continued)

27) Financial risk management

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
{i} Market risk

(ii) Credit risk

(iii) Liquidity risk

Risk management framework

The Company's board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management framework. The board of
directors has established the Risk Management Committee, which is responsible for developing and monitoring the Company's risk management palicies. The
committee reports regularly to the board of directors on its activities.

The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to
monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's
activities. The Company, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and canstructive control environment in
which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

The audit committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company’s risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of
the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The audit committee is assisted in its oversight role by internal audit. Internal audit
undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the audit committee.

(i} Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices and is exposed to risks such as

a) Interest rate risk

b) Currency risk

c) Prepayment risk

which will affect the Company’s income. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters,
while optimising the return.

a) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect the fair value or cash flows of the financial assets and financial liabilities.
Normally, the Company's business is exposed to interest rate risk as a result of mismatches or gaps in the amounts of assets and liabilities and off-balance-sheet
instruments that mature or reprice in a given period. The Company manages this risk by matching the assets and liabilities through risk management strategies.

The table below details the exposure of the Company to interest rate risk
(Rupees in Lakhs)

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 April 01, 2017
Fixed rate
Financial assets 344,333.68 387,535.86 411,485.44
Financial liabilties 343,267.63 332,517.47 387,827.11
Floating rate instruments
Financial assets 185,473.74 192,379.26 197,892.21
Financial liabilties 10,783.10 76,005.05 52,442.33

The interest rate sensitivity of the Incame statemant measures the affect of assumed changes in interest rates on the net interest incoinie far one year, based on the

interest bearing financial assets and liahilities held at year end. The interest rate sensitivity in the income statement is the impact of changes in interest rates on the

fair value of fluating rate loans {waorking capital dernand loan and bank gverdraft) and floating rate loans given (dealer funding) as at the year end.

The following table reflects the effects of 50 bps to 100 bps basis points change in interest rate curve on the income statement with all other variables held constant:
(Rupees in Lakhs)

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 April 01, 2017

Decrease by 50bps to 100 bps:
- Impact on income statement (251.26) (177.28) (499.68)

- Other Comprehensive Income
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Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 {continued)

b) Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company is exposed to foreign
exchange rates on account of payables outstanding in the financial statements. Outstanding positions are monitored on a periadical basis to ensure that the

positions are within established limits.

The company's exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of reporting period expressed are as follows:

(Rupees in Lakhs)

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 April 01, 2017
Financial Liabilities )

Payable to Related Parties

EURO 5.077.96 2,203.35 398.88
MXN 46.46 5.78
SEK 173.24 88.50

TRY 77.26 10.06 25.74
ZAR 17.92 -
Other Payables

GBP 3.08 12.36

The Sensitity of Profit and Loss and OCl to changes in the exchange rates are as follows:
The company has considered the maximum price movement in the respective currency during the year as sentivity benchmark for the

purpose of Foreign Currency Sensitivity Analysis

{Rupees in Lakhs)

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 April 01, 2017

Adverse change in foreign exchange rate based on previous 12

months movement in exchange rate

- Impact on income statement
EURO (163.53) {280.66) (39.31)
MXN - (4.84) (1.07)
SEK {15.79) {9.15) -
TRY {36.88) (1.39) 1.28
ZAR - {3.08) -
GBP {0.53) - (2.56)

- Other Comprehensive Income

c) Prepayment risk

Prepayment risk is the risk that the Company will incur a financial loss because its customers and counterparties repay or request repayment earlier than expected

particularly in case of fixed rate loans when interest rates fall.

Most of the Company’s interest-bearing financial assets are at fixed rates loans. In addition, majority of the interest-bearing financial liabilities have a maturity of less
than one year and the Company also has a repayment option to prepay the liabilities. Accordingly, the Company is not exposed to significant prepayment risk since
the financial liabilities can be paid in case of prepayments of financial assets. .
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Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 (continued)

ii) Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises
principally from the Company's receivables from customers and loans and advances. Credit risk encompasses both, direct risk of default and the risk of deterioration
of creditworthiness as well as concentration of risks.

(a) Expected Credit Loss measurement

Ind AS 109 outlines a ‘three-stage’ model for impairment based on changes in credit quality since initial recognition wherein if a financial instrument that is not credit-
impaired on initial recognition is classified in Stage 1. If a significant increase in credit risk {‘SICR’) since initial recognition is identified, the financial instrument is
moved to Stage 2 but is not yet deemed to be credit-impaired and if the financial instrument is credit-impaired, the financial instrument is then moved to Stage 3.
Purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets are those financial assets that are credit-impaired on initiaf recognition and are taken to Stage 3

The general approach is used for financial assets measured at amortized cost, financial assets {debt instruments) whose changes in fair value are recognized in other
comprehensive income and for irrevocable credit commitments unless there is already objective evidence of impairment on initial recognition. Financial assets are
broken down into three stages in the general approach. Stage 1 consists of financial assets that are being recognized for the first time or that have not demonstrated
any significant increase in probability of default since initial recognition. In this stage, the model requires the calculation of an expected credit loss for the next
twelve months. Stage 2 consists of financial assets for which there is an significant increase in credit risk. Financial assets demonstrating objective indications of
impairment are allocated to Stage 3. In Stages 2 and 3, an expected credit loss is calculated for the entire remaining maturity of the asset.

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than 30 days past due. For the wholesale portfolio, the credit
risk is assumed to have been increased based on change in the risk class according to the master scale as of reporting date is compared with the risk class according
to master scale as of initial recognition

The Company considers a financial asset to be in defauit when:

-the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full, without recourse by the Company to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or
-the financial asset is 90 days or more past due

-For wholesale portfolio, it also depends on the risk class as per the master scale of the company

In the case of financial assets already impaired on initial recognition and classified as purchase originated and impaired assets (“POCI") for the purposes of the
disclosures, the provision for credit risks is recognized in subsequent measurement on the basis of the cumulative changes in the expected credit loss for the entire
life of the asset concerned. Any financial instrument already classified as impaired on initial recognition remains in this stage until it is derecognized.

Both historical information, such as average historical default probabilities for each portfolio, and forward- looking information is used to determine the
measurement parameters for calculating the provision for credit risks.

Reviews are regularly carried out to ensure that the credit risk provisions are appropriate. Uncollectible loans or receivables that are already subject to a workout
process and for which all collateral has been recovered and all further options for recovering the loan or receivable have been exhausted are written off based on the
management's decisions. Any provision allowances previously recognized are utilized. Income subsequently collected in connection with loans or receivables already
written off is recognized in profit or loss.

Loans are reported in the balance sheet at the net carrying amount. The provision for credit risks relating to off-balance sheet revocable credit commitments is not
recongnized since the same are unconditionally cancellable commitments.

The Company does not recognize provision for credit risks for receivables and cash & cash equivalents since they carry low credit risk.

b) Collateral and other credit enhancements

The Company employs a range of tools to reduce credit risk. The Company seeks collateral coverage, assignment of contract proceeds and other forms of protection
to secure lending and minimize credit risks wherever possible. The Company's borrowing agreements also include legally enforceable netting arrangements for loans
and deposits enabling the Company to consolidate the customer’s various accounts with the Company and either transfer credit balances to cover any outstanding
borrowings or freeze the credit balances until the customer settles their outstanding obligations to the Company.

Collateral held varies, but may include:

- Underlying vehicles in case of retail portfolio

- Residential and commercial real estate property
- Land

- Bank guarantee

The Company’s policies regarding obtaining collateral have not significantly changed during the reporting period and there has been no significant change in the
overall quality of the collateral held by the Company since the prior period.
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Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 {continued)

The below table provides quantitative information of collateral for credit impaired assets under Stage 3
{Collateral Coverage - Value of collateral available to mitigate the credit expasure)
(Rupees in Lakhs)

Gross value of loan in stage 3
Loan To Value (LTV} range .
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 April 01, 2017
Upto 50% Coverage 28,217.84 11,604.55 2,247.28
51% - 70% Coverage 8,591.73 6,150.27 4,857.11
71% - 100% Coverage 5,659.28 2,371.10 6,851.95
Above 100% coverage 3,720.63 3,820.93 4,180.63
46,189.48 23,946.85 18,136.97
¢} Credit risk profile
March 31, 2019
{Rupees in Lakhs)
Whaolesale Portfolio
ECL staging
Rating Stage 1 S.tag.e 2 S.tag.e 3
12-month Lifetime Lifetime Total
ECL £CL ECL
Gross carrying amount 126,160.10 57,963.23 30,279.90 214,403.23
Less: Loss allowance 1,438.50 687.05 18,553.42 20,678.96
124,721.60 57,276.18 11,726.49 193,724.27
{Rupees in Lakhs)
Retail Portfolio
ECL staging
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Categol = =
sy 12-month Lifetime Lifetime Total
ECL ECL ECL
Gross carrying amount 270,809.70 28,684.90 15,909.58 315,404.18
Less: Loss allowance 1,097.68 6,174.89 10,543.99 17,816.56
269,712.03 22,510.01 5,365.59 297,587.62
Movement in Gross Carrying Amount
{Rupees in Lakhs}
ECL staging:
. Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Particulars L) g
artiewia 12-month Lifetime Lifetime Total
Exposure Exposure Exposure
Gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2018 435,137.75 120,830.52 23,946.85 579,915.12
Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 2 {37,312.60) 25,420.20 - (11,892.40)
Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 1 4,211.16 (7,864.53) - (3,653.37)
Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 3 - (11,484.41) 9,717.05 {1,767.36)
Transfer from Stage 3 to Stage 2 - 703.20 (1,126.56) {423.36)
Ensfer from Stage 1 to Stage 3 (7,587.35) 6,545.12 (1,042.23)
Transfer from Stage 3 to Stage 1 46.22 . (77.35) (31.14)
New facility added during the period 202,735.62 43,539.05 13,411.03 259,685.70
Increase in loan expaosure in existing loan facility 41.34 - 682,77 724,11
Decrease in loan exposure in existing loan facility (83,672.34) (9,830.07) (644.75) (94,147.16)
Loans de-recognized during the period other than write-offs {116,060.99) (73,419.70) (1,940.90) (191,421.59)
Decrease in loan exposure due to write off (568.99) (1,246.13) (4,323.78) (6,138.90)
Gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2019 396,969.81 86,648.13 46,189.48
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Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 {continued)

Movement in Provision

(Rupees in Lakhs)

ECL staging
particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
12-month Lifetime Lifetime Total
Exposure Exposure Exposure
Provision amount as at March 31, 2018 2,082.62 8,508.79 11,449.77 22,041.18
Transfers: 0.00 = 0.00
Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 2 (247.30) 2,311.02 2,063.72
Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 1 15.36 (1,118.84) . (1,103.47)
Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 3 - {1,305.43) 6,871.39 5,565.97
Transfer from Stage 3 to Stage 2 - 150.99 (579.14) (428.15)
Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 3 (48.98) - 3,069.24 3,020.26
Transfer from Stage 3 to Stage 1 0.17 - (39.77) (39.60)
New facility added during the period 1,764.36 1,880.15 7,806.76 11,451.28
Increase in loan exposure in existing loan facility 80.61 170.04 3,906.05 4,156.70
Decrease in loan exposure in existing loan facility (570.59} {1,521.07) (562.07) (2,653.73)
Loans de-recognized during the period other than write-offs (537.47) (1,859.43) (662.47) (3,059.37)
Decrease in loan exposure due to write off (2.61) (354.29) {2,162.35) (2,519.25)
Provision amount as at March 31, 2019 2,536.18 6,861.94 29,097.41 38,495.52
March 31, 2018
{Rupees in Lakhs)
Wholesale Portfolio
ECL staging
. Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Rating 12-month Lifetime Lifetime Total
ECL ECL ECL
Gross carrying amount 107,251.82 93,567.84 9,754.99 210,574.64
Less: Loss allowance 580.54 1,916.00 4,153.97 6,650.50
Carrying amount 106,671.28 91,651.84 5,601.02 203,924.14
(Rupees in Lakhs)
Retail Portfolio
ECL staging
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Category 12-month Lifetime Lifetime Total
ECL ECL ECL
Gross carrying amount 327,885.93 27,262.69 14,191.87 369,340.48
Less: Loss allowance 1,502.08 6,592.80 7,295.80 15,390.68
Carrying amount 326,383.85 20,669.89 6,896.06 353,949.80
Movement in Gross Carrying Amount
(Rupees in Lakhs)
ECL staging
: Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Particulars 12-month Lifetime Lifetime Total
Exposure Exposure Exposure
Gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2017 479,770.97 111,469,70 18,136.97 609,377.65
Transfers: - . - -
Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 2 {41,234.45) 33,084.31 - (8,150.14)
Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 1 8,207.29 (12,550.32) (4,343.03)
Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 3 - {9,053.60) 7,229.17 (1,824.42)
Transfer from Stage 3 to Stage 2 - 742.08 {1,124.62) {382.54)
Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 3 (5,548.67) 4,096.12 | (1,452.55)
Transfer from Stage 3 to Stage 1 234.01 - . (380.07)| (146.06)
New facility added during the period 124,427.19 10,959.00 663.66 136,049.86
Increase in loan exposure in existing loan facility 9,388.74 4,731.91 389.61 14,510.25
Decrease in loan exposure in existing loan facility {101,057.40) (15,915.29) (1,007.24) {117,979.93)
Loans de-recognized during the period other than write-offs (38,298.01) (1,393.23) (270.11) (39,961.35)
Decrease in loan exposure due to write off (751.94) (1,244.05) {3,786.64) (5,782.63)
Gross carrying amount as at MAR '18 435,137.75 120,830.52 23,946.85 _?5915.12
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Volkswagen Finance Private Limited*

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 (continued}

Movement in Provision

(Rupees in Lakhs)

ECL staging
. Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Particulars 12-month Lifetime Lifetime Total
Exposure Exposure Exposure
Provision amount as at MAR '17 2,643.16 6,542.93 10,055.11 19,241.21
Transfers: - = -
Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 2 (326.45) 3,831.76 - 3,505.31
Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 1 41.74 {1,119.34) - {1,077.60)
Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 3 {1,325.03) 2,847.08 1,522.05
Transfer from Stage 3 to Stage 2 - 225,23 (564.35) (339.12)
Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 3 (32.36) = 2,307.29 2,274.94
Transfer from Stage 3 to Stage 1 1.07 - (190.73) (189.65)
New facility added during the period 569.64 1,235,98 341,18 2,146.79
Increase in loan exposure in existing loan facility 78.56 340.23 494.20 912.99
Decrease in loan exposure in existing loan facility (697.42) (633.21) (1,649.95) (2,980.58)
Loans de-recognized during the period other than write-offs (191.62) {320.09) {135.54) (647.26)
Decrease in loan exposure due to write off (3.70) (269.66) (2,054.54) (2,327.90)
Provision amount as at MAR '18 2,082.62 8,508.79 11,449.77 22,041.18
April 01, 2017
{Rupees in Lakhs)
Wholesale Partfalio
ECL staging
Rating Stage 1 S.tag.e 2 S.tag.e 3
12-month Lifetime Lifetime Total
ECL ECL ECL
Gross carrying amount 118,342.68 91,463.46 5.577.84 215,383.97
Less: Loss allowance 867.10 1,946.56 3,752.80 6.566.46
Carrying amount 117,475.58 89,516.90 1,825.03 208,817.52
(Rupees in Lakhs)
Retail Portfolio
ECL staging
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Category 12-month Lifetime Lifetime Total
ECL ECL ECL
Gross carrying amount 361,428.30 20,006.24 12,559.14 393,993.67
Less: Loss allowance 1,776.07 4,596.38 6,302.31 12,674.75
Carrying amount 360,018.26 15,043.84 6,256.83 381,318.92
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Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

m

Notes to the Financlal St ts for the year ended March 31, 2019 {c

28) Financial instruments - Fair value measurement

The fair value is the amount at which financial instruments could be sold on fair terms as of the reporting date, Where market prices (e.g. for marketable securities) were available, we have used these prices
without modification for measuring fair value. If no market prices were available, the fair values for loans/receivables and liabilities were calculated by discounting using a maturity-matched discount rate
appropriate to the risk

28.1) Carrying of the fi lal assets and fil ial llabilltles, including their levels in the fair value hlerarchy, are presented below:
{Rupees in Lakhs)
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 April 01, 2017
Amortlsed Cost FVTOCI FVTPL Amartised Cost FVTOCi FVTPL Amartised Cost FVTOCI FVTPL
FInanclal assets
Cash and cash equivalents 670.08 . - 31389 . 273.95
Bank balzfnces other than cash and 100 i 100 i i 60.83 :
cash equivalents
Receivables
(1) Trade receivables 2,586,45 2,22042 - - 908.71
(11} Other receivables - - - .
Loans 491,311.88 - 557,873.94 E - 590,136.44
Other Financial assets 617,02 . - 580.65 - - 478.73
Total financial assets 495,186.43 - - 560,989.90 - - 591,858.66 - -
Financial liabllities
Payables
{1} Trade payables
(i) total outstanding dues of micro . . o
enterprises and small enterprises :
(ii) total outstanding dues of 16,647.85 22,057.95 27,227.17
(1) Other payables
(i) total outstanding dues of micro
enterprises and small enterprises
(ii) total outstanding dues of
creditors ather than micro
enterprises and small enterprises
Debt securities 146,730.78 - 230,133 63 - 166,844 41
Barrowings {(Other than debt 207,319.94 178,388.50 - 273,425.02
Other financial liabilities 3,365 98 2,760.70 - 1,174.98
Total financial liabilities 374.064.55 - - 433.341.18 - - 468.673.77 - -

28.2) Fair Value:

The Company does not have any financial assets and financial liablities which are valued at fair value. Fair value of the the financial assets and
financial liabilities which are not measured at fair value {including their levels in their fair value hierarchy, are presented below). When the carrying
amount is a reasanable approximation of fair value, the fair value of the financial assets or liabilities have been not disclosed. For all financial
instruments other than Loans ans Debt securities, the carrying value and fair value are approximately close to each other

(i) Fair value of financials assets and liabilitles

March 31, 2019 [Rupaes in Lakhs)
Particulars Carrying amount Falr value
Amatlsed Cost FVTOCI FVTPL Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Loans 529,807.42 - 519,793.69
Debt securities {Non convertible 146,730.78 i . 147,682.54
debentures)
March 31, 2018 [Rupees in Lakihy)
t Fail
Partlculars Carrying amoun air valua
Amotised Cost FUTOCH FVTPL Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Loans 579,915.12 - 570,905.16
Debt securities (Non convertible 230,133.63 229,763.41
debentures)
Aprli 01, 2017 [Rupases In Lakha)
particulars Carrying amount Fair value
Amotised Cost FVTOCH FVUTPL Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Loans 609,377 65 - 602,115 06
Debt securities {Non convertible 166,844.41 168,640.26
debentures)
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Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 (continued)

(i) Fair value of Statement of Financial Position is presented below:
{Rupees in Lakhs)

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Carrying Value Fair Value Carrying Value Fair Value Carrying Value Fair Value

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 670.08 670.08 313.89 313.89 273.95 273.95

Bank balances other than cash and

cash equivalents 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 60.83 60.83

Receivables

(1) Trade receivables 2,586.45 2,586.45 2,220.42 2,220.42 908.71 908.71

{1l) Other receivables - = - -

Loans 491,311.88 519,793.69 557,873.94 566,994.54 590,136.44 602,115.06

Other Financial assets 617.02 617.02 580.65 580.65 478.73 478.73

Total financial assets 495,186.43 523,668.24 560,989.90 570,110.51 591,858.66 603,837.28

Financial liabilities

Payables

(1) Trade payables

(i} total outstanding dues of micro
enterprises and small enterprises - - . 219 2,19
{ii) total outstanding dues of
creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises 16,647.85 16,647.85 22,057.95 22,057.95 27,227.17 27,227.17
(1) Other payables = - . .

(i) total outstanding dues of micro
enterprises and small enterprises
(i} total outstanding dues of
creditors other than micro

enterprises and small enterprises - ] ,
Debt securities 146,730.78 147,682.54 230,133.63 229,763.41 166,844.41 168,640.26

Borrowings {Other than debt

securities) 207,319.94 207,319.94 178,388.90 178,388.90 273,425.02 273,425.02
Other financial liabilities 3,365.98 3,365.98 2,760.70 2,760.70 1,174.98 1,174.98
Total financial liabilities 374,064.55 375,016.31 433,341.18 432,970.96 468,673.77 470,469.62

Valuation technlques used to determlIne fair value:

The Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. This includes a risk team that has overall
responsibility for overseeing all significant fair value measurements, including Level 3 fair values, and reparts directly to the chief financial officer

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial assets by valuation technique:

The fair value of financial instruments are classified into three categories i.e. Level 1, 2 or 3 depending on the inputs used in the valuation
technique. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active market for identical assets or liabilities (level 1 measurements) and
lowest priority to unobservable inputs {level 3 measurements).

The hierarchies used are as follows:

Loans

The fair values of loans that do not reprice or mature frequently are estimated using discounted cash flow models. The discount rates are based
on internal estimation and consequently for the purposes of level disclosures categorized under Level 3, The discount factor used for fair
valuation is derived using a combination of interpolated risk-free interest rates, risk premium, service fee and interpolated funding spreads as on
valuation date. Input data used to carry out the fair valuation covers portfolio data, expected future cashflows, provision data and live LAN level
data for each product in the portfolio.

Debt securities

The fair values of the Company’s non convertible debentures are calculated based on a discounted cash flow model. The discount factor used for fair valuation is
derived using a combination of interpolated risk-free interest rates and credit-spreads of the Company as on valuation date Input data used to carry out the fair
valuation covers portfolio data and expected future cashflows for each product in the portfolio

Transfers between Levels
There are no tranfers between Level 1, 2 and 3 since there are no financial instruments at fair value under the category
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Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 (continued)

29) Capital

Capltal management

The primary objectives of the capital management palicy is to ensure that the Company continuously complies with capital
requirements required by regulator, maintains strong credit ratings and healthy debt to equity ratios in order to support its business

and to maximise shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it according to changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of its activities. In order to fund growth or comply with regulatory capital requirement, Company depends on internal
accrual or may raise additional capital. Company may adjust the amount of dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to

shareholders.

The company uses the capital adequacy requirement as prescribed by the regulator as benchmark to monitor its capital
requirements. The status of capital adequacy requirements are mentioned below:

Regulatory capital

(Rupees in Lakhs)

Particulars As on March 31, 2019 | As on March 31,2018 | Ason April 01, 2017
Net Own Fund (Tier 1) 118,686.76 129,079.85 124,688.77
Tier ll 6,318.93 7,161.63 7,528.67
Total capital 125,005.69 136,241.48 132,217.44
IRisk weighted assets 505,514.031 572,930.705 602,293.907
Tier | Capital ratio 23.48% 22.53% 20.70%
Tier Il Capital ratio 1.25% 1.25% 1.25%
\\] atel‘]mr 3 \\\

\l,..-—-—ﬂ

Chartered Adcounta nl) »
_FRN 3011 % _. __

o

\_”_ “Mumbad_




Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 {continued)

30)

31)

Operating Leases as Lessee

The Company has taken various office and residential premises under operating lease or leave and license agreements. These are generally non-
cancellable for an initial lock in period. The Company has paid refundable Interest free Security Deposit (Undiscounted) of Rs.669.87 Lakhs (Previous
Year; Rs. 660.58 Lakhs) in respect of certain leases.

Lease Payments recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss with respect to all operating leases is Rs. 866.96 Lakhs (Previous Year: Rs.825.13 Lakhs)
included under Rent expenses of Rs. 741.50 Lakhs (Previous Year: Rs.684.59 Lakhs) and under Salaries, Bonus and Allowances Rs. 125.46 Lakhs

(Previous Year: 140.54 Lakhs)

With respect to non-cancellable operating leases, the future minimum lease payments are as follows:

Minimum Lease Payments

March 31, 2019

March 31, 2018

{Rupees in Lakhs) (Rupees in Lakhs)
Not later than ane year 292.50 386.74
L, b ! han fi
ater than one year but not later than five years 58.61 10347

Later than five years

Cars given on operating lease are cancellable in nature and hence no disclosure is required under Ind AS 17.

Fareign Currency transactions

(Rupees in Lakhs)

Particul Year Ended March 31,
articulars e " & Year Ended March 31, 2018
2019
(a)Reimbursement of Expatriate Salaries 334.12 426.01
{b)Information Technology Support Charges 2,254.79 1,612.04
(c) Stock Audit Charges 17.19 41,41
(d) Corporate Gaurantee Fee 40.32 36.51
(e) Reimbursement of Expenses - 12.60
(f) Travelling Expenses 70.70 =
(g) Services/Consultancy Fees 523.80
(h} Purchase of software 58.47 E
The details of unhedged foreign currency exposure as at the year-end are as follows:
(Rupees in Lakhs)
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 April 01, 2017
Foreign A ti A ti
s Indian Rupees mou‘n i Indian Rupees | Amount in Foreign Indian Rupees mou'n o
Currency R Foreign R R Fareign
equivalent equivalent Currency equivalent
Currency Currency
EURO 5,077.96 62.24 2,203.35 27.44 398.88 5.76
MXN - - 46.46 13.04 5.78 1.68
GBP 3.08 0.04 12.36 0.15
SEK 173.24 23.20 88.50 11.33 -
TRY 77.26 6.31 10.06 0.62 25.74 1.03
ZAR - - 17.92 3.25
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Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 (continued)

32) Related Party Disclosures
1 Related Parties and nature of relationship
i Where control exists
a. Ultimate Holding Company Volkswagen AG, Germany*
b. Holding Company Volkswagen Finance Overseas B.V,Netherland*
. Intermediate Holding Company Volkswagen Financial Services A.G, Germany
ii. Other Related Parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year
a. Fellow Subsidiaries i Volkswagen Group Sales India Private Limited, India
il Skoda Auto India Private Limited, India
il Volkswagen Pon Financial Services B.V., Netherlands *
iv Volkswagen India Private Limited, india
v Man Trucks India Private Limited, India
vi Volkswagen Procurement Services GMBH, Wolfsburg*
vii Volkswagen Services S.ADEC.V *
viii Scania Commercial Vehicles India Pvt. Ltd *
ix Volkswagen T Services India Private Limited
X Volkswagen Dogus Finansman, Turkey
xi Volkswagen Bank GMBH
Xii VWES Digital Solutions GMBH
Xiii Volkswagen Finans Sverige AB
Xiv VWEFS South Africa (Pty) Ltd. *
Xv VW Software Asset Management GMBH
b. Key Management Personnel i Mr. Andreas Kutzer, Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director {upto June 30,
2017)
ii Mr. Pieter Griep, Chief Finance Officer and Managing Director {upto December 31,
2016)
iii Mr. Reinhard Walter Fleger, Non-Executive Director* {upto September 29, 2017)
v Mr. Gokhan Cinar, Additional Director (From November 11, 2016 to December 31,
2016) and Chief Finance Office and Managing Director (w.e.f. January 01, 2017 )
v Mr. Hans Patrik Riese, Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director w.e.f. July 01,
2017 and resigned w.e.f February 28, 2019
vi Mr. Norbert Dorn, Additional director (from September 29, 2017 till August 10, 2018)
and Non-executive Director (w.e.f. August 10, 2018 )
vij Mr. Ashish Deshpande, Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer (w.e.f March
01, 2019) '

*Parties with whom no transactions during the year.
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Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 {(continued)

33) Segment Reporting

For management purposes, the Company is organised into business units based on its type of products and has two reportable segments, as
follows:

- Retail Finance

- Dealer Finance

The Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM"}, is the managing director of the Company who evaluates the performance and allocates resources
based on an analysis of various performance indicators by operating segments. Operating profit or loss is reported as the primary key performance
indicator to the chief operating decision-makers. The information made available to management for management purposes is based on the
same accaunting policies as those used for external financial reporting.

Retail Finance: Providing loans to customers for purchase of VW Group brand vehicles i.e. Volkswagen, Skoda, Audi, Porsche, Lambhorgini MAN
and Scania.

Dealer Finance: providing New Car Unit Funding, Term Loans and Used Cars funding to the dealers of VW Group brand i.e. Volkswagen, Skoda,
Audi,Porsche, Lamborghini and MAN .

(Rupees in Lakhs)

Particulars March 31, 2019

Retail Finance Dealer Finance Unallocated Total
Revenue
External 35,878.64 18,197.68 5,187.62 59,263.94
Inter segment - - -
Total 35,878.64 18,197.68 5,187.62 59,263.94
Segment Result - profit / (loss) 7,084.77 (12,352.04) (577.17) (5,844.44)
Profit/(Loss) before Tax - - - (5,844.44}
Tax Expense {Including Deferred Tax) - . - {2,030.55)
Profit/(Loss) After Tax before extraordinary ltems - . E (3,813.89)
Extraordinary ltems - - -
Profit/{Loss) After Tax = - - (3,813.89)

Other Information

Carrying Amount of Segment Assets 301,040.17 198,244.72 15,730.75 515,015.64
Carrying Amount of Segment Liabilities 213,063.12 157,527.26 10,301.24 380,891.62
Capital Expenditure 151.01 101.85 - 252.85
Depreciation / Amortisation 217.60 146.76 - 364.36

Chartered Adcountants
FRN 3011128




Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 {continued)

{Rupees in Lakhs)

Particulars March 31, 2018

Retail Finance Dealer Finance Unallocated Total
Revenue
External 36,613.25 21,602.74 3,243.58 61,459.57
Inter segment =
Total 36,613.25 21,602.74 3,243.58 61,459.57
Segment Result - profit / {loss) 6,081.35 4,449.22 -1,302.18 9,228.39
Profit/{Loss) before Tax - 9,228.39
Tax Expense {Including Deferred Tax) - - 3,566.10
Profit/{Loss) After Tax before extraordinary Items - 5,662.29
Extraordinary ltems - - s
Profit/(Loss) After Tax - 5,662.29
Other Information
Carrying Amount of Segment Assets 357,579.97 205,349.79 11,705.40 574,635.16
Carrying Amount of Segment Liabilities 265,573.90 166,043.01 5,100.71 436,717.62
Capital Expenditure 329.96 187.74 517.70
Depreciation / Amortisation 300.77 171.14 - 471.91

(i) Unallocated revenue mainly consists of Income from Insurance business

(i) Unallacated expenses comprise of expenses towards corporate social responsibility, directors sitting fees, conveyance expenses, foreign
expense loss and other administratative expenses.
(iii) Segment assets comprise mainly of retail loans, dealer finance loans, interest accrued on retail loans and dealer finance loans, receivable from
interest subvention . Unallocated assets represent mainly other loans and advances, defered tax assets cash and cash equivalents, advance tax and
TDS and security deposits. Segment liabilities include payable for retail finance and dealer finance, trade and other payables and borrowings.
Unallocated liabilities mainly include outstanding expenses and statutory liabilities. Carrying value of Segment assets includes Asset held for sale of

Rs. 493.23 Lakhs {Previous year: Rs. 586.73 Lakhs) under Dealer Finance segment.

(iv) The Company does not have revenue from its customer who individually contributes more than 10 percent of the Company's revenue.

fé}.'\k'_\.?
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Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 (continued)

34) Disclosure on Restructured Advances

For Financial Year 2018-19

(Rupees in Lakhs)

Type of Restructuring > Others
SINo Asset Classification - Standard Sub Standard Doubtful Loss Total
Details &
Restructured Accounts as on April 1 [No. ofiborfguers " . L L 2
1 b the Financial Year (opening figures) Amount outstanding 106.95 4,92 111.87
Provision thereon - 54,98 2.53 57.51
Fresh restructuring during the year  |No. of borrowers 2 - 2.00
2 Amount outstanding - 3,823.31 - - 3,823.31
Provision thereon - 824.73 - - 824.73
No. of borrowers - . - -
3 Recovery Amount outstanding - (6.27) (6.27)
Provision thereon - (14.97) . - (14.97)
Upgradations to restructured No. of borrowers - - - -
4 standard category during the Amount outstanding - -
Financial Year Provision thereon - -
Restructured standard advances No. of borrowers -
5 which cease to attract higher Amount outstanding
provisioning and / or additional risk  |Provision thereon -
Downgradations of restructured No. of borrowers (4) 1 3 -
6 accounts during the Financial Year Amount outstanding - (68.14) 1.15 66.99 0.00
Provision thereon (23.28) 1.15 22.14 0.00
Write-offs of restructured accounts  |No. of borrowers - (3.00) (1.00) (4.00)
7 during the Financial Year Amount outstanding - (32.54) (4.92) {37.46)
Provision thereon (16.73) (2.53) - {19.26)
Restructured Accounts as on March  |No. of borrowers - 2 1 3 6.00
8 31 of the Financial Year Amount outstanding - 3,829.58 1.15 66.99 3,891.45
{closing figures) Provision thereon = 839.70 1.15 22,14 848.01

Note: Since the disclosure of restructured advance accounts pertains to section "Others", the first two sections, namely, "Under COR Mechanism" and

For Financial Year 2017-18

{Rupees in Lakhs)

Type of Restructuring > Others
SI No Asset Classification - Standard Sub Standard Doubtful Loss Total
Details 1

Restructured Accounts as on April 1 No. of borrowers - = L L - 2
! of the Financial Year {opening figures) junount outstanding - =X 484 - b
Provision thereon 1.42 2.43 3.85
No. of borrowers - 6 - [
2 Fresh restructuring during the year  |Amount outstanding 105.80 105.80
Provision thereon - 54.39 54,39

No. of borrowers - - - -
3 Recovery Amount outstanding (1.68) 0.08 - (1.60)
Provision thereon (0.83) 0.10 {0.73)

Upgradations to restructured No. of borrowers . -

4 standard category during the Amount outstanding E -
Financial Year Provision thereon -
Restructured standard advances No. of borrowers -

5 which cease to attract higher Amount outstanding - - - -
provisioning and / or additional risk  |Provision thereon

No. of borrowers - .

e Downgradations of restructured Amount outstanding =

accounts during the Financial Year
Provision thereon ) )
No. of borrowers -

= Write-offs of restructured accounts Amount outstanding = =

during the Financial Year
Provision thereon a
Restructured Accounts as on March  |No. of borrowers 7 1 8

8 31 of the Financial Year Amount outstanding - 106.95 4,92 111.87

(closing figures) Provision thereon 54.98 2.53 57.51

Note: Since the disclosure of restructured advance accounts pertains to section "Others", the first two sections, namely, "Under CDR Mechanism" arid
"Under SME Debt Restructuring Mechanism" as per format prescribed in the guidelines are not included above.

Chartered A :
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Valkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 {continued})

35) The Company has certain dues ta suppliers registered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 {'MSMED Act'). The disclosures
pursuant to the said MSMED Act are as follows:
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 April 01, 2017
{Rupees in Lakhs) (Rupees in Lakhs) {Rupees in Lakhs)
Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the - 2.19

MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at year end
Interest due to suppliers registered under the MSMED
Act and remaining unpaid as at year end

Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under - -
the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the
year

Interest paid, other than under Section 16 of MSMED - -
Act, to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act,
beyond the appointed day during the year

Interest paid, under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to
suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the
appointed day during the year

Interest due and payable towards suppliers registered
under MSMED Act, for payments already made

Further interest remaining due and payable for earlier - - -
years

The above information regarding small scale industrial undertakings and micro, small and medium enterprises have been determined to the extent such
parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the company.

36) Contingent Liabilities and other Capital Commitments
a. Contingent Liabilities :

I, Claims against the Company not acknowledge as debts by the Company is Rs. 102.13 Lakhs {March 31, 2018: Rs. 154.93 Lakhs ; April 01, 2017: Rs. 84.07
Lakhs)

il.  Service Tax Matter
Company received show cause notice from Office of the Assistant Commissioner of Service Tax demanding service tax of Rs. 2,537.76, Lakhs on certain
transactions. The Company has disputed the said show cause notice and started paying the service tax on those transactions under protest. The
Commissioner of Service Tax had passed order dated February 20, 2017 confirming the stand taken by the department to pay service tax along with
interest and penalty,
The Company has disputed the order passed by the Commissioner of Service Tax and has filed appeal before The Customs, Excise and Service Tax Appellate
Tribunal (CESTAT) in the financial year 2017-18.

Accordingly, service tax matter in respect of which assessment pending is Rs. 5,071.85 Lakhs (March 31, 2018 Rs, 5,071.85 Lakhs ; April 01, 2017 Rs.
5,033.56 Lakhs) and the amount paid under protest Rs. 2,534.08 Lakhs (March 31, 2018 Rs. 2,534,08 Lakhs ; April 01, 2017 Rs. 2,495.80 Lakhs}, This is being
disputed by the Company and not provided far

iii. Income Tax Matter

In respect of Income Tax matter, in FY 2015-16 the company had received show cause notice for non deduction of withholding tax on payment to non-
residents. The company has disputed the said show cause notice and paid the disputed liability under protest. The Commissioner of Income Tax {Appeal)
had passed order dated December 08, 2016 confirming the stand taken by the department to pay withholding tax along with interest and penalty. The
Company had disputed the said order and filed an appeal dated March 29, 2017 with the Income Tax Appellate Tribunal (ITAT). The Company has received
penalty order under section 271C of The Income Tax Act, 1961 in the current financial year. The Company has disputed the said order and filed an appeal
against the same with Commissioner of Income Tax {Appeal).

Accordingly, Income tax matter in respect of which assessment pending is Rs. 89.20 Lakhs (March 31, 2018 Rs. 89.20 Lakhs ; April 01, 2017 Rs. 44.60 Lakhs)
and Rs. 44 60 Lakhs (March 31, 2018 Rs. 44.60 Lakhs ; April 01, 2017 Rs. 44.60 Lakhs} had been paid under protest. This is being disputed by the Company
and hence not provided for.

iv.  Provident fund

On February 28, 2019, the Hanorable Supreme Court of India delivered a judgement in the case of "Vivekananda Vidyamandir and Others Vs The Regional
Provident Fund Commissioner (I} West Bengal’ in relation to non-exclusion of certain allowances from the definition of "basic wages" of the relevant
employees for the purposes of determining contribution to provident fund under the Employees' Provident Funds & Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952.
The Employees’ Provident Fund Organisation also issued a circular (Circular No. C-1/1(33)2019/Vivekananda Vidyamandir/284) dated March 20, 2019 in
relation to aforesaid matter.
In Company’s assessment, the above judgement is not likely to have a significant impact and therefore presently no provision has been made in the
Financial Statements

b. Capital Commitments :
Estimated value of contracts in capital account remaining to be executed is Rs. 805.77 Lakhs (March 31, 2018: Rs. 939.17 Lakhs ; April 01, 2017: Rs. 153.58
Lakhs)
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Volkswagen Flnance Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 {continued)

37)

U}

i)

{iii)

Tax expense

Amounts recognised [n profit and loss

. March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Particulars R .
(Rupees in Lakhs) | (Rupees in Lakhs)
Current tax expense
Current period 4,080.88 4,103.47
Changes in estimated related to prior years 57.53 {199.64)
Total current tax expanso (A) 4,138.41 3,903.83
Deferred income tax liability / (asset), net
Origination and reversal of temporary differences {6,168.96) {337.73)
Reduction in tax rate
Recognition of previously unrecognised tax losses -
Change in recognised deductible temporary differences -
Deferred tax expense {B) (6,168.96) (337.73)
Tax expense for the year (A}+(B) (2,030.55} 3,5&5.T'
Amounts recognised In ather comprehensive Income
{Rupees in Lakhs)
Year ended March 31,2019 Year ended March 31,2018
Particulars Before tax Tax {expense}/ Net of tax Befare tax Tax (expense)/ Net of tax
benefit benefit
itemns that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(a) Remeasurements of defined benefit liability (asset)
31.16 (10.78) 20.38 295 (1.02) 1,93
Total 31.16 {10.78} 20.38 2.95 (1.02} 1.93
Movement in deferred tax balances
(Rupees in Lakhs)
March 31, 2019
Particulars Opening balance Recognised In profit| Recognised Net Deferred tax Deferred tax
March 31, 2018 ar loss In0Cl asset liabHity
Deferred tax asset/(llabllitles)
Property, plant and equipment 102.99 1178 11.78 11477 -
Loans 216.56 184.21 184.21 400.77
Security deposits 72.78 {23.97) (23.97) 48,81
Employee benefits 193.06 163.37 10.78 174,15 367.21 -
Provisians 7,702.07 5,749.81 5,749.81 13,451.88
Other items (1,438.55) 72.97 72,97 - {1,365.57)
Total 6,848.91 6,158.17 10.78 6,168.95 14,383.44 {1,365.57)
(Rupees In Lakhs)
March 31, 2018
Particulars Opening balance Recognised In profit Recagnised Net Deferred tax Deferred tax
April 01,2017 or loss inoQ asset liability
Deferred tax asset/(liabllities)
Property, plant and equipment 49.38 53.61 - 53.61 102.99
Loans 42024 (203.68) (203.68) 21656 E
Security deposits 87.81 {15.03) (15.03} 72.78 -
Employee benefits 194.99 (2.95) 1.02 (1.93) 193.06
Provisions 6,659.38 1,042.69 1,042.69 7,702,07
Other items {900.61) (537.93} (537.93) - {1,438.54)
Total 6,511.19 336.71 1.02 337.73 8,287.45 | (1,438.58)
C -Wdtel’ho , ‘:“::\
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Volkswagen Finance Private Limlted

Notes to the FInanclal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 {continued)

(v}

)

Effective Tax Rate
particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
(Rupees In Lakhs) | (Rupees in Lakhs)
Profit before tax
Profit Before Tax (5,844.44}) 9,228.39
Tax rate 34.944% 34.608%
Tax on profits (2,042.28) 3,193,76
Tax effect of:
CSR expenses 30.63 53.97
Interest on Late Payment of TDS 2.69 0.65
Prior Period Expenses 330 -
tax on perquisits u/s 10(10CC) 18.79 39.10
Tax rate change Impact - {62.84)
Others {43.68) 341.46
Total income tax expanses {2,030.55) 3,566.10
Effective tax rate 34.74% 38.64%

The company offsets tax assets and liabllities if and only If it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities

and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to Income taxes levied by the same tax authority,

Significant management Judgment Is required in determining provision for income tax, deferred income tax assets and liabllities and
recoverabillity of deferred income tax assets. The recoverability of deferred income tax assets Is based on estimates of taxable Income [n which

the relevant entity operates and the period over which deferred income tax assets will be recovered.

Tax Balances

{Rupees in Lakhs)

Partlculars

As at March 31, 2019

As at March 31,
2018

As at April 01,
2017

Current Tax Assets (Net)

299.86

543.24

20,73

(Net of Provision of March 31, 2019 Rs. 7,493.48 lakhs,
March 31, 2018 Rs, 3,335.53 lakhs, April 1, 2017 Rs.
3,009.16 lakhs)

Current Tax Llabilitles (Net)

(Net of Advance Tax of March 31, 2019 Rs,12,406.70
lakhs, March 31, 2018 Rs,14,511.92 lakhs, April 1, 2017
Rs.11,067.84 lakhs)

2.863.12 |

768.96

634.57

Total

2,563.26

225.72

613.84

N Mumbdl =
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Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 {continued)

38)

First-time adoption of Ind AS

The accounting policies set out in note 1 have been applied in preparing the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019, the comparative information
presented in these financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018 and in the preparation of an opening Ind AS balance sheet at April 1, 2017 (the
company's date of transition). In preparing its opening Ind AS balance sheet, the company has adjusted the amounts reported previously in financial statements
prepared in accordance with the accounting standards notified under Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended) and other relevant provisions of
the Act {previous GAAP or Indian GAAP or IGAAP). An explanation of how the transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS has affected the company's financial position,
financial performance and cash flows is set out in the following tables and notes.

Optional exemptions availed and mandatory exceptions

A. Optional exemptions availed
Set out below are the applicable Ind AS 101 optional exemptions and mandatory exceptions applied in the transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS.

Deemed cost

Ind AS 101 permits a first-time adopter to elect to continue with the carrying value for all of its property, plant and equipment as recognised in the financial
statements as at the date of transition to Ind AS, measured as per the previous GAAP and use that as its deemed cost as at the date of transition after making
necessary adjustments for de-commissioning liabilities, capital grant if applicable. This exemption can also be used for intangible assets covered by Ind AS 38
Intangible Assets.

Accordingly, the company has elected to measure all of its property, plant and equipment and intangible assets at their previous GAAP carrying value.

Leases
Appendix C to Ind AS 17 requires an entity to assess whether a contract or arrangement contains a lease. In accordance with Ind AS 17, this assessment should be

carried out at the inception of the contract or arrangement. Ind AS 101 provides an option to make this assessment on the basis of facts and circumstances existing
at the date of transition to Ind AS, except where the effect is expected to be not material.

Designation of previously recognised financial instruments
Ind AS 101 allows an entity to designate investments in equity instruments at FYOCI on the basis of the facts and circumstances at the date of transition to Ind AS.

The company has elected to apply this exemption for its investment in equity instruments.

B. Mandatory exemptions availed
The company has applied the following exceptions from full retrospective application of Ind AS as mandatorily required under Ind AS 101:

Estimates
An entity’s estimates in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition to Ind AS shall be consistent with estimates made for the same date in accordance with

previous GAAP (after adjustments to reflect any difference in accounting policies), unless there is objective evidence that those estimates were in error. Ind AS
estimates as at April 1, 2017 are consistent with the estimates as at the same date made in conformity with previous GAAP. The company made estimates for
following items in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition as these were not required under previous GAAP,

- Investment in equity instruments measured at FVOC|;
- Investment in debt instruments measured at FVTPL;
- Impairment of financial asset based on expected credit loss model.

De-recognition of financial assets and liabilities
Ind AS 101 requires a first-time adopter to apply the de-recognition provisions of Ind AS 109 prospectively for transactions occurring on or after the date of

transition to Ind AS. However, Ind AS 101 allows a first-time adopter to apply the de-recognition requirements in Ind AS 109 retrospectively from a date of the
entity’s choosing, provided that the information needed to apply Ind AS 109 to financial assets and financial liabilities derecognised as a result of past transactions
was obtained at the time of initially accounting for those transactions.

The company has elected to apply the de-recognition provisions of Ind AS 109 prospectively from the date of transition to ind AS

Classification and measurement of financial assets
Ind AS 101 requires an entity to assess classification and measurement of financial assets on the basis of the facts and circumstances that exist at the date of

transition to Ind AS.

Reconciliations between previous GAAP and Ind AS
Ind AS 101 requires a first time adopter to reconcile equity, total comprehensive income and cash flows for prior periods. The following tables represent the
reconciliations from previous GAAP to Ind AS. The presentation requirements under previous GAAP differs from and hence the previous GAAP information has been
restated for ease of reconciliation with Ind AS 3

FRN 3011128 /
Mumbai /”/
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Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 {continued)

Reconciliation of Other equity between previous GAAP and Ind AS: (Rs. In Lakhs)

) As at April 01, 2017 | As at March 31, 2018
Particulars
Other equity (reserves and surplus) as per previous GAAP 14,505.94 19,738.44
Adjustments:
Impact of effective interest rate (EIR) 1,442.52 932.31
Provision for ECL on financial assets (1,773.03) {1,686.46)
Recognition of interest receivable for NPA assets 1,569.32 2,714.77
Unammortized discount of NCDs and commercials papers 99.49 57.89
Adjustment of security deposit and prepaid expenses for premises (15.45) (20.34)
Tax Impact of Ind AS adjustments (458.99) (699.28)
Others 3.31 -
Total adjustments 867.18 1,298.88
Total equity as per Ind AS 15,373.11 21,037.32
Reconciliation of equity as at April 01, 2017
(Rs. In Lakhs)
Amount as per Effects of transltion Amount as per Ind
Particulars Note |GAAP to Ind AS as
ASSETS
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 273.95 273.95
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 60.83 - 60.83
Receivables -
(1) Trade receivables 908.71 908.71
{1l) Other receivables -
Loans B 588,572.24 1,564.20 590,136.44
Other Financial assets A 732.43 {253.70) 478.73
Total financial assets 590,548.16 1,310.50 591,858.66
Non-financial assets -
Deferred Tax Asset (net) 6,970.17 {458.99) 6,511.18
Property, Plant and Equipments 863.84 - 863.84
Intangible Assets 318.09 318.09
Capital work-in-progress 84.46 84.46
lIntangible Assets under Development 78.11 - 78.11
Other non financial assets D 3,038.97 241.57 3,280.54
Assets held for sale 624.51 624.51
Total non financial assets 11,978.16 (217.42) 11,760.73
TOTAL ASSETS 602,526.32 1,093.08 603,619.39
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
Financial liabillties
Payables
(l) Trade payables
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises 2.19 219
(i) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises 27,227.17 27,227.17
(I} Other payables
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises = *
(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises = =
Debt securities A 166,900.92 (56.51) 166,844.41
Borrowings (Other than debt securities) A 273,468.00 (42.98) 273,425.02
Other financial liabilities 1,174.98 - 1,174.98
Total financial liabilities 468,773.26 {99.49) 468,673.77
Non-financial liabilities -
Other non financial liabilities B 2,366.91 325.39 2,692.30
Total non financial liabilities 2,366.91 325.39 2,692.30
Equity -
Equity Share Capital 116,880.21 - 116,880.21
Other Equity 14,505.94 867.18 15,373.11
Total equity 131.386.15 867.18 132,253.33
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 602,526.32 1.093.08 603.619.39

L W
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Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 (continued)

Reconcillation of equity as at March 31, 2018

(its. In Lakhs)

Particulars

Note

Amount as per

Effects of transition

IGAAP to Ind AS _|_{Rupeesin Lakhs) |
ASSETS .
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 313.89 - 313.89
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 1.00 - 1.00
Receivables -
{I) Trade receivables 2,220.42 - 2,220.42
(1) Other receivables =
Loans B 555,510.35 2,363.59 557,873.94
Other Financial assets A 788.93 (208.28) 580.65
Total financial assets 558,834.59 2,155.31 560,989.90
Non-financial assets
Deferred Tax Asset (net) 7,547.15 (698.24) 6,848.91
Property, Plant and Equipments 923.16 923.16
Intangible Assets 317.79 317.79
Capital work-in-progress 6.52 6.52
Intangible Assets under Development 1,070.25 - 1,070.25
Other non financial assets D 3,703.93 187.94 3,891.87
Assets held for sale 586.76 - 586.76
Total non financial assets 14,155.56 (510.30) 13,645.26
TOTAL ASSETS 572,990.16 1,645.01 574,635.16
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
Financial liabilities
Payables
{I) Trade payables
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises =
(i) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises 22,057.95 22,057.95
(11) Other payables -
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises B
(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises - = -
Debt securities A 230,172.81 (39.18) 230,133.63
Borrowings (Other than debt securities) A 178,407.60 (18.70) 178,388.90
Other financial liabilities A 2,760.68 0.02 2,760.70
Total financial liabilities 433,399.05 {57.87) 433,341.18
Non-financial liabilities
Other non financial liabilities B 2,972.45 403.99 3,376.44
Total non financial liabilities 2,972.45 403.99 3,376.44
Equity
Equity Share Capital 116,880.21 - 116,880.21
Other Equity 19,738.44 1,298.89 21,037.33
Total equity 136,618.66 1,298.89 137,917.54
572,990.16 1,645.01 574,635.16

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

March 31, 2018

Mumbal
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Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 (continued)

Reconciliation of profit or loss for the year ended March 31, 2018

particulars Hote Amount as per Effects of transition Amount as per Ind
IGAAP to Ind AS AS
Revenue From Operations
(i) Interest income using effective interest rate B 56,083.61 1,077.49 57,161.10
{ii) Fees and commission income B 4,181.56 (553.59) 3,627.97
(iii) Other operating income B 907.97 (498.24) 409.73
| Total Revenue from operations 61,173.14 25.66 61,198.80
Il Other Income B 157.79 102.98 260.77
Il Total Income {1 +11) 61,330.93 128.64 61,459.57
IV Expenses
(i) Finance Costs A 32,280.46 41.62 32,322.08
(ii) Impairment of financial instruments B 2,826.71 (26.73) 2,799.98
{iii) Employee Benefits Expenses G 5,389.45 2.95 5,392.40
(iv) Depreciation and amortization expenses - 471.91 - 471.91
{v) Other Expenses B 11,803.04 (558.24) 11,244.80
Total Expenses 52,771.57 {540.40}] 52,231.17
V {Loss) / Profit before Tax 8,559.36 669.04 9,228.40
VI Tax (Expense)/Income 3,326.85 239.25 3,566.10
(1) Current Tax 3,903.83 - 3,903.83
{2) Deferred Tax (Credit) / Charge - {576.98) 239.25 (337.73)
VIl {Loss) / Profit for the year (V-VI) 5,232.50 429.79 5,662.29
VIII Other Comprehensive Income
A {i) Items that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss o < 2.95 2.95
{ii) Income tax relating to items that will
not be reclassified to profit or loss o - (1.02) (1.02)
Subtotal (A} - 1.93 1.93
B (i) ltems that will be reclassified to
profit or (loss) = -
(i) Income tax relating to items that will
be reclassified to profit or loss * - -
Subtotal (B) - - -
Other Comprehensive Income (A + B) 1.93 1.93
IX Total Comprehensive Income for the period (VI + VIII)
(Comprising (Loss) / Profit and other Comprehensive Income for
the year) 5,232.50 431.72 5,664.22

Waterh.,{
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Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 (continued) —

Notes to first-time adoption:

A. Borrowings
Ind AS 109 requires transaction costs incurred towards origination of borrowings to be deducted from the carrying amount of borrowings on initial recognition.

These costs are recognised in the profit or loss over the tenure of the borrowing as part of the interest expense by applying the effective interest rate method.

B. Loans
Ind AS 109 requires transaction costs received towards origination of loans assets to be deducted from the carrying amount of loan assets on initial recognition.

These costs are recognised in the profit or loss over the tenure of the loan asset as part of the interest income by applying the effective interest rate method.

C. Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations
Under Ind AS, remeasurements i.e, actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in the net interest expense on the net

defined benefit liability are recognised in other comprehensive income instead of profit or loss. Under the previous GAAP, these remeasurements were forming part
of the profit or loss for the year.

D. Security deposits
Under the previous GAAP, interest free lease security deposits (that are refundable in cash on completion of the lease term) are recorded at their transaction value.

Under Ind AS, all financial assets are required to be recognised at fair value. Accordingly, the company has fair valued these security deposits under Ind AS
Difference between the fair value and transaction value of the security deposit has been recognised as prepaid rent.

E. Other comprehensive income
Under Ind AS, all items of income and expense recognised in a period should be included in profit or loss for the period, unless a standard requires or permits

otherwise. Items of income and expense that are not recognised in profit or loss but are shown in the statement of profit and loss as ‘other comprehensive income’
includes remeasurements of defined benefit plans, foreign exchange differences arising on translation of foreign operations and fair value gains or (losses) on FVOCI
equity instruments. The concept of other comprehensive income did not exist under previous GAAP.

. Amount as per Effects of transition
Particulars Previous GAAP Py Amount as per Ind AS
Net cash (used in) / generated from operating activities 33,485.68 (277.89) 33,207.79
Net cash {used in) / generated from investing activities (1,671.53) 277.88 (1,393.65)
Net cash flow from financing activities (31,774.21) 0.01 (31,774.20)
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents 39.94 . 39.94
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 273.95 - 273.95
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 313.89 0.00 313.89




Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 {continued)

39)

Disclosures under Non-Banking Financial Companies - Corparate Governance {Reserve Bank) Directions, 2015

Capital

Rarticulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
(Rupees in Lakhs) {Rupees in Lakhs)

a) CRAR (%) 24.73% 23.,78%|

b) CRAR —Tier | Capital (%) 23.48% 22.53%

c) CRAR —Tier |l Capital (%) 1.25% 1.25%|

d) Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier-Il capital

e) Amount raised by issue of Perpetual Debt Instrument

The Company has applied zero risk weight to the un-drawn credit facility in computation of the Capital Adequacy Ratio
considering the same is unconditionally cancellable by the Company at any point of time.

Additional Disclosures

Provisions and Contingencies

Under the head Expenditure in Statement of Profit and Loss

March 31, 2019
{Rupees in Lakhs)

March 31, 2018
(Rupees in Lakhs)

a) Provisions for depreciation on Investment - -

b) Expected Credit Loss 16,454.36 2,799.97

c) Provision made towards Income tax (including Deferred (2,030.55) 3,566.10
Tax)

d) Other Provision and Contingencies 127.47 87.59

Concentration of Advances, Exposures and NPAs

Concentration of Advances

March 31, 2019
(Rupees in Lakhs)

March 31, 2018
{Rupees in Lakhs)

Percentage to Total Advances

Particulars
Total Advances to twenty largest borrowers 98,267.29 95,729.61
Total Outstanding Advances 529,807.42 579,915.12
Percentage to Total Advances 18.55% 16.51%
Concentration of Exposures

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Particulars {Rupees in Lakhs} {Rupees in Lakhs)
Total Exposure to twenty largest borrowers / customers 109,194.51 115,605.19
Total Exposure to Customers 625,518.99 659,447.76
Percentage to Total Exposure 17.46% 17.53%
Concentration of NPAs

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Particulars (Rupees in Lakhs) {Rupees in Lakhs)
Total Outstanding to four largest borrowers / customers 14,547.12 7,416.29
Total Outstanding Advances 529,807.42 579,915.12

2.75% 1.28%

..-"""'__:_‘"-~. -
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Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 {continued)

Sector-wise NPAs

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
(Rupees in Lakhs) {Rupees in Lakhs)
Sector Amount Percentage to Total Amount Percentage to
Advances Total Advances
a) Agriculture & allied activities
b} MSME
c) Corporate borrowers
d) Services
e) Unsecured personal loans -
f) Auto loans and other related loans 46,189.48 8.72%| 23,946.85 4.13%
g) Other personal loans = .
Movement of NPAs
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Particulars {Rupees in Lakhs) {Rupees in Lakhs)
a) Net NPAs to Net Advances (%) 3.48% 2.24%
b) Movement of NPAs (Gross)

i) Opening balance 23,946.85 18,136.97

ii} Additions during the year 30,741.41 13,063.69

iii) Reduction during the year (8,498.78) (7,253.82)

iv) Closing balance 46,189.48 23,946.85
b) Movement of Net NPAs

i} Opening balance 12,497.08 8,081.86

ii) Additions during the year 7,698.09 5,589.64

iii) Reduction during the year (3,103.10) (1,174.42)

iv) Closing balance 17,092.07 12,497.08
) Movement of provisions for NPAs {excluding provisions

on standard assets)

i) Opening balance 11,449.77 10,055.11

ii) Provisions made during the year 23,043.32 7,474.05

i) Write-off (3,549.20) (3,217.14)

iv) write-back of excess provisions (1,846.49) (2,862.25)

v) Closing balance 29,097.41 11,449,77
Customer Cornplaints

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
particulars (Rupees in Lakhs) {Rupees in Lakhs)
a) No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the 5 0
b) No. of complaints received during the year 417 73
c) No. of complaints redressed during the year 422 68
d) No. of complaints pending at the end of the year 0 5
Registration obtained from other financial sector regulators
The Company has obtained Registration No. CA0142 to act as a Corporate Agent under the Insurance Act 1938 (IV of
1938) from Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority (IRDA).
— _ I;{qu
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Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 (continued)

vi

vii

Disclosure of Penalties imposed by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) and other regulators

No penalties imposed by RBI or any other Regulator,

Ratings assigned by credit rating agencies and migration of ratings during the year

Rating Agency: India Ratings & Reaserch Private Limited

During the year, Company has obtained below mentioned credit rating on different dates for different products.

Date of Rating Rating Agency
24-jul-18 India Ratings & Research Private Limited
26-Oct-18 India Ratings & Research Private Limited
21-Jan-19 India Ratings & Research Private Limited
16-May-18 ICRA Limited
24-Jul-18 ICRA Limited
26-Oct-18 ICRA Limited
21-Jan-19 ICRA Limited
Date of Rating Rating Agency
24-Jul-18 India Ratings & Research Private Limited

Date of Rating Rating Agency

24-Jul-18 India Ratings & Research Private Limited
24-Jul-18 India Ratings & Research Private Limited
29-Aug-18 India Ratings & Research Private Limited
29-Aug-18 India Ratings & Research Private Limited
10-Jan-19 India Ratings & Research Private Limited
10-Jan-19 India Ratings & Research Private Limited

Extent of financing of parent company products

Commercial Paper

IND A1+

IND A1+

IND A1+
ICRA Al+
ICRA A1+
ICRA Al+
ICRA A1+

Others
IND AAA (Long Term)
& IND A1+ (Short
Term)
IND AAA (Long Term)
& IND Al+ (Short
Term)
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA

Non Convertible Debe Others

IND AAA (Long Term)

Bank Rating
Long Term Bank Loan
Rating

Short Term Bank
Loan Rating

Long Term Bank Loan
Rating

Short Term Bank
Loan Rating

Long Term Bank Loan
Rating

Short Term Bank
Loan Rating

IND AAA {Long Term)
& IND A1+ (Short
Term)

Others
IND AAA Outlook
Stable

IND Al+
IND AAA Outlook
Stable

IND Al+
IND AAA Outlook
Stable

IND A1+

Particulars

March 31, 2019
(Rupees in Lakhs)

March 31, 2018
{Rupees in Lakhs)

Loan outstanding as at year end out of the amount financed to parent
company products
Company Portfolio
Percentage of financing for parent product upon Company's portfolio

515,577.41
529,807.42

97.31%

579,331.71
579,915.12

99.90%

s Uge
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Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 {continued) —

Gross Value of Investments

Provision for Depreciation on Investments

Met Value of livestments

Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on investments

Investment
st

Derlvatives: |Forward Rate Agreement / Interest Rate Swaps

Notional Principal of Swap Agreements

Losses which would be incurred if counterparties failed to fulfilt their obligations under the agreements
Collateral required by the NBFC upon entering into swaps

Concentration of credit risk arising from the swaps

The fair value of the swap book

Exchange Traded Interest Rate Derivatives

Notional Principal amount of exchange traded interest rate derivatives undertaken during the year

Notional Principal amount of exchange traded interest rate derivatives outstanding as at March 31, 2018
Notional Principal amount of exchange traded interest rate derivatives outstanding and not "highly effective
Mark-to-market value of exchange traded interest rate derivatives outstanding and not "highly effective"

Quantitative Disclosures

Derivative {Notional Principal Amount)
Marked to Market Positions

Credit Exposure

Unhedged Exposure

Securitlsati |No of SPVs sponsored by the NBFC for securitisationtransactions

on: Total amount of securitised assets as per books of theSPVs sponsored
Total amount of exposures retained by the NBFC to comply with MRR as on the date of balance sheet
Amount of exposures to securitisation transactionsother than MRR

Financlal Assets sold to Securitisation / Reconstruction Company for Asset Reconstruction
No. of accounts

Aggregate value (net of provisions) of accounts sold to SC/RC

Aggregate consideration

Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred in earlier years
Aggregate gain / loss over net book value

Assignment transactlons undertaken

No. of accounts

Aggregate value (net of provisions} of accounts sold to SC/ RC

Aggregate consideration

Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred in earlier years
Aggregate gain / loss over net book value

Details of non-performing financlal assets purchased
No. of accounts purchased during the year
Aggregate outstanding

Of these, number of accounts restructured during the year
Aggregate outstanding

Detalls of non-performing flnancial assets sold
No. of accounts sold

Aggregate outstanding

Aggregate consideration received

Residential Mortgages
Commercial Real Estate
Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities {MBS) and other securitised exposures

Exposure to
Real Estate
Sector

Exp e to | Direct ir in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible debentures and units of equity- oriented mutual funds the corpus of which is not exclusively invested in
Capital Advances against shares / bonds / debentures or other, securities or on clean basis to individuals for investment in shares (including IPOs / ESOPs), convertible bonds,

Market Advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds are taken as primary security;

Advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the collateral security of shares or convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual
Secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guarantees issued on behalf of stockbrokers and market makers;

Loans sanctioned to corporates against the security of shares / bonds / debentures or other securities or on clean basis for meeting promoter's contribution to the equity of new
Bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows / issues;

All exposures to Venture Capital Funds (both registered and unregistered)

Concentratid Total Deposits of twenty largest depositors
Percentage of Deposits of twenty largest depositors to Total Deposits of the NBFC

Other During the year, there are no penalties levied by RBI / other regulators

During the year, Companys has not postponed revenue recognition on account of pending uncertainties
During the year, Companys has not made any draw down of reserves

Company does not have any overseas joint venture / subsidiary.

There are no SPVs sponsored by the Company

v >
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a0)

41)

42)

43)

44)

45)

Disclosures required by paragraph 18 of Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit
taking Company {Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 are given in Annexure |,

Corporate Social Responsibliity (CSR) Expenditure:
Gross amount required to be spent by the company during the year Rs. 228.67 Lakhs {Previous Year Rs. 193.48 Lakhs)

[Rupees In Lakhs)

Amount spent during the year ending on 21st March, ;-
SNo Actlvitles In cash | Yettobe paid Total
(i} |Construction/Acquisltion of any asset e - -
1) On purposes of other than (i) above 166.82 166.82
Amount spert duting the year ending on 31st March, 2018 (Rup Int Lakhs)
SNo Actlvities , In cash Yet to be pald Total
{I} [Construction/Acauisitlon of any asset i - -
i) On purposes of other than (i} above ki 306.50 o 306.50

Disclosure pursuant to Circular No. DNBS.PD.CC.No 256 /03.10.42 / 2011-12 dated March 02, 2012 on Monitoring of frauds, the frauds detected and reported for
the year amounted to Rs. 10,757.00 Lakhs {Previous year Rs. 24.00 Lakhs}.

The Company has a process whereby periodically all long term contracts are assessed for materlal foreseeable losses. At the year end, the Company has reviewed

and ensured that adequate provision as required under any law/ accounting standards for material foreseeable losses on such long term contracts has been made
in the books of accounts.

Previous year's figures have been reclassified/regrouped, wherever necessary, to confirm with current year's classifications.
SEB! Disclosure

(a)
Initlal Disclosure In terms of Para 4.1 of cIrcular SEBI/HO/DDHS/CIR/P/2018/144 dated November 26, 2018

Particulars Detalls
1 [Name of the company Voll Finance Private Limited
2 |CIN U65999MH2009FTC189640

Outstanding borrowing of company as on March 31st,
3 12019 (Rs. in lakhs)*
4 |Highest Credit Rating During the previous FY along with | ICRA Limited - A1+ for Short Term Rating

name of the Credit Rating Agency Indla Ratings and Research Private Limited -
IND A1+ Short Term Rating & IND AAA/Stable
for Long Term Rating

348,466.00

Name of Stock Exchange in which the fine shall be paid,
in case of shortfall in the required borrowing under the

5 |framework - BSE Limited _|
The Company confirms that it Is a Large Corporate as per the applinatiiity criteris given under the SEBI circular SEBI/HO/DDHS/CIR/P/2018/144 dated
November 26, 2018.

* Numbers as per previous GAAP




Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Financlal for the year ended March 31, 2019 [continued) -
45 (b) Disclosure under Regulatlon 53(e) of SEBI (Listing Obl and Discl e Req ) Regul 2015
Debenture Trustees:

Vistra ITCL {India) Limited
The IL&FS Financlal Centre,
Plot C- 22, G Black, 7th Floor
Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East),
Mumbal 400051
Tel: +91 022 2659 3602
Ermall: itcleamplianceofficermvista, con

Website: win, vitrallcl.com

Disclosure under Regulation 53(f) of SEBI (Listing Oblig: and Discl e Requir ) I 2015

Related Farty transactions
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
{Rs. In Lakhs} [Rs. In Lakhs)

Loans and advancas in the nature of loans to subsidiaries

Lans and advances in the nature of loans e asociates

Losns and advances in the natore of leans to firms/companies in which
dirsctors are nereatad

Investments by the leanee in the shares of parent company and
subsidiany company, when the company bas made a loan or advance in
the nature of lodn

(fefer Ralated party disclasuris Note 32)

Disclosure under Regulation 54(2) of SEBI (Listing Ol and Discl e Requlr ) 2015

Asset cover

The Debentures are secured by way of a first and parl passu mortgage in favour of the Security Trustee on the Company's immovable
property of Rs.22.87 lakhs {gross value) and further secured by way of hypothecation/mortgage of charged assets such as receivables
arlsing out of auto loan.

HMotes to the Financial St

ments reforred 1o lerein above form an integial part of the finsngial state

For Price Waterhouse Farand on ehall of the Board of Directors
Flrm Registration No. 301112E

Chartered Accountants

Sharad Agarwal sty eshpande
Partner Chief Executive Officer &
Membership No. 118522 Managing Director

DIN 08314277 \(‘ DIN (f7hagas4
I —

-
Harshatls Pathak
Company Secretary
Membership No, A19534

Mumbai Mumbai
May 30, 2019 May 29, 2019



Volkswagen Finance Private Limited
ANNEXURE | FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
MARCH 31, 2019

Schedule to the Balance Sheet of a Non-Deposit Taking Non-Banking Financial Company
(as required in terms of Paragraph 18 of Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company
and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016

{All amounts in Lakhs)
Liabilities Side
(1) |Loans and advances availed by the NBFCs inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not paid:

Particulars Amount outstanding Amount overdue

(a) Debentures : Secured 146,730.78 -
: Unsecured - _

(other than falling within the meaning of public deposits)#

(b) Deferred Credits -
(c) Term Loans 20,765.75

(d) Intercorporate loans and borrowing -

(e) Commercial Paper 101,847.70

(f) Public Deposits#

(g) Other Loans - Working Capital Demand Loan 73,923.39 -
- Bank Overdraft 10,783.10 -

# Refer to note 1 below
(2) |Break-up of (1)({f) above (Outstanding public deposits inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not paid) :

Particulars Amount outstanding Amount overdue
(a) In the form of Unsecured debentures
{b) In the form of partly secured debentures i.e. debentures where there is a shortfall - -
(c) Other public deposits

Asset Side

Amount Outstanding

Break-up of Loans and Advances including bills receivables [other than those included

3) in (4) below]:
(a) Secured 389,774.78
(b} Unsecured* 140,032.64
Break-up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and other assets counting towards AFC
) activities

(i) Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors:
(a) Financial lease -
(b) Operating lease 109.51

(i) Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors:
(a) Assets on hire
(b) Repossessed Assets
(iii} Other loans counting towards AFC activities
(a) Loans where assets have been repossessed
(b) Loans other than {(a) above
(5) [Break-up of Investments :
Current investments:
1. Quoted
(i) Shares: (a) Equity -
{b) Preference =
(ii) Debentures and Bonds
(iii) Units of Mutual funds -
(iv) Government Securities -
(v) Others (please specify)
2. Unquoted
(i) Shares: (a) Equity
(b) Preference
(i} Debentures and Bonds
(iii) Units of Mutual funds
(iv) Government Securities
{v) Others {Certificate of Deposits-Cermuercial Paper & PTC)

* Exclud i : 3 _
xcludes advance income taxﬂ%ﬁtﬁgaﬁaﬂ@ﬁﬁjwﬁ

Chartered Aﬂnumam 5




Volkswagen Finance Private Limited
ANNEXURE | FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
MARCH 31, 2019

Schedule to the Balance Sheet of a Non-Deposit Taking Non-Banking Financial Company

(as required in terms of Paragraph 18 of Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company
and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016

(Al amounts in Lakhs)

Break-up of Investments (continued)...

Amount Outstanding

Long Term investments
1. Quoted
(i) Shares: (a) Equity
(b) Preference
(i) Debentures and Bonds
(iii) Units of Mutual funds -
(iv) Government Securities
(v) Others (please specify)
2. Unquoted
(i) Shares: (a) Equity
(b) Preference
(i) Debentures and Bonds
(iii) Units of Mutual funds -
(iv) Government Securities
{v) Others (please specify)
(6) |Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (2) and (3) above: (Refer note 2 below)

Category Amount net of provisions
Secured Unsecured Total
1. Related Parties
(a) Subsidiaries = - -
{b) Companies in the same group 109.51 109.51
('c) Other related parties - -
2. Other than related parties 361,453.95 129,857.94 491,311.89
Total 361,563.46 129,857.94 491,421.40
(7} |Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long term) in shares and securities (both quoted and unquoted): (Refer
Category Market Value/ Break- Book Value (Net of
up or fair value or NAV Provisions)

1. Related Parties**
(a) Subsidiaries -

(b) Companies in the same group

(c) Other related parties E -

** As per Accounting Standard issued by ICAI (Refer note 3 below)

2. Other than related parties

Total

(8) |Other Information

Particulars Amount

{i) Gross Non Performing Assets
(a) Related Parties

(b) Other than related parties 46,189.48
(i) Net Non-Performing Assets

(a) Related Parties -

(b) Other than related parties 17,092.07
(iii) Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt 493.23

Notes:
1. As defined in point xix of paragraph 3 of Chapter -2 of these Directions.

2. Provisioning norms shall be applicable as prescribed in these Directions.,

3. All Accounting Standards and Gui

-

& ICA| are applicable including for valuation of investments and other assets as also assets
Waterhgtv\ = M a

,\,T\ce 18a

Chartered Actountants

Mumbai




